
CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
A CLASS II CITY IN MARION COUNTY

djc dfc 9^ sfc djc sjc 9(C 9^ 9^ 9f( 9fc 9|( 9fC 9{C 9^ 9^ 9jC 9{C 9|(

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND
RELATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015
KFP #13-088 (Marion County)



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Mxmicipal Officials 1

Schedule ofFunds Included in Report 2

Independent Auditor's Report 3-6

Basic Financial Statements:

Statement ofNet Position 7

Statement ofActivities 8-9

Fund Financial Statements:

Fimd Balance Sheets - Governmental Funds 10-11

Reconciliation ofFund Balance Sheets ofGovernmental Fxmds to Statement of

Net Position 12

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds 13-14

Reconciliation of the Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances ofGovernmental Funds to the Statement ofActivities 15

Statement ofFinancial Position - Proprietary Funds 16-17

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds 18-19

Statement ofCash Flows - Proprietary Funds 20-21

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget
and Actual - General Fund - Budgetary Basis 22-23

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget
and Actual - Coal Severance Fund - Budgetary Basis 24

Fiduciary Responsibilities - Statement ofNet Position 25

Fiduciary Responsibilities - Statement ofChanges in Net Position 26



TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTD)

Page

Notes to Financial Statements 27-86

Required Supplementary Information:

ScheduleofProportionateShare ofthe Net Pension Liability 87

Schedule ofCity Contributions 88

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 89

Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund
ScheduleofChangesin Net Pension Liabilityand RelatedRatios Multiyear 90
Schedule ofthe Net Pension Liability Multiyear 91
Schedule ofContributions Multiyear 92
Notes to Schedule ofContributions 93

Policemen's Pension and ReliefFund
ScheduleofChangesin Net Pension Liabilityand RelatedRatios Multiyear 94
Schedule ofthe Net Pension Liability Multiyear 95
Schedule ofContributions Multiyear 96
Notes to Schedule ofContributions 97

Supplementary Information:

CombiningFund Balance Sheets- NonmajorGovernmental Funds- Special
Revenue Funds 98

CombiningStatements ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Fxinds - Special Revenue Funds 99

Combining Statement ofFiduciary Responsibilities- Statement ofNet Position 100

Combining Statement of FiduciaryResponsibilities - StatementofChanges in
Net Position 101

Independent Auditor's Reporton Internal Controlover FinancialReporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit ofFinancial Statements
Performed in Accordance with GovernmentAuditingStandards 102-103



TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTD)

Page

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance forEach Major Program andon
Intemal Control Over ComplianceRequired by 0MB Circular A-133 104-106

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs 107-108

Schedule ofExpenditures and Federal Awards 109-110

SummarySchedule ofPrior Audit Findings 111

Corrective Action Plan 112



Office

Mayor:

Council Members:

1®^ District

2°*^ District

3"^ District

4*^ District

5^ District

6^ District

7^ District

8^ District

9^ District

City Manager:

Finance Director:

City Clerk:

Mimicipal Judge:

CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Name

Elective

Ronald J. Straight

Marianna Moran

Frank Yann

Robert Linger

William Burdick

Fran Warner

Daniel Weber

Philip Mason

Thomas Mainelia

Ronald J. Straight

Appointed

Janet Keller

(Acting City Manager)

Eileen Layman

Paula Friend

(Acting City Clerk)

Anthony Julian

Term

01/01/15-12/31/18

01/01/15-12/31/18

01/01/13-12/31/16

01/01/15-12/31/18

01/01/13-12/31/16

01/01/15-12/31/18

01/01/13-12/31/16

11/25/14-12/31/16

01/01/15-12/31/18

01/01/11-12/31/18



aXY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF FUNDS INCLUDED IN REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2015

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

MAJOR FUNDS

General
Coal Severance Tax

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

MAJOR FUNDS

Water

Building Commission
Parking

Park Commission

NONMAJOR FUNDS

SpecialRevenue Funds

Boards and Commissions
Workers Compensation

Urban Renewal Authority
Economic Development Grant

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Pension Trust Funds

Policemen's Pension and Relief
Firemen's Pension and Relief

COMPONENT UNITS

Discretely Presented
Sanitary Board



Tetrick &Bartlett,
Certified Public Accountants

JL9=

PLLC

& Consultants

122 N. Oak St • PC Box 1916 • Clarksburg, WV 26302-1916 • (304) 624-5564 • Fax:(304) 624-5582 • wvw.tetrickbartlettcom
1517 Mary Lou Retton Drive • Fairmont, WV 26554 • (304) 366-2992 • Fax:(304) 366-2370

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Council
City ofFairmont
Fairmont, West Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, aggregate blended
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Fairmont, West Virginia, as ofand for the year ended Jime 30,2015 and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City ofFairmont, West Virginia's basic
financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthese financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance ofintemal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States ofAmerica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks ofmaterial misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial
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statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purposeofexpressing an opinionon the effectiveness of the entity's internalcontrol.
Accordingly, we expressno such opinion. An audit also includesevaluatingthe appropriateness
of accounting policies usedand the reasonableness of significant accoimting estimates madeby
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.

We believethat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providea
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to abovepresent fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretelypresentedcomponent units, aggregate blendedcomponent units, each major
fundand the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cityof Fairmont, WestVirginiaas of
June 30,2015, and the respectivechanges in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof and the respectivebudgetarycomparisonof the GeneralFund and the Coal Severance
Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generallyacceptedin the
United States ofAmerica.

Emphasis ofMatter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements for the yearendedJune 30,2015, the City of
Fairmont, West Virginiaadopted new accountingguidance, GASB 68,Accounting and Financial
Reportingfor Pensions - an amendment ofGASB Statement No. 27, GASB 69, Government
Combinations and Disposals ofGovernment Operations, GASB 70,Accounting and Financial
Reportingfor Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, and GASB 71,Pension Transitionfor
Contributions MadeSubsequent to theMeasurement Date —an amendment ofGASB Statement
No. 68. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

OtherMatters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omittedthe management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement Ae
basic financial statements. Suchmissing information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriateoperational, economic,or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.
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Accounting principles generally accepted inthe United States ofAmerica require the schedule of
proportionate share ofthe net pension liability, schedule ofCity's contributions, notes to required
supplementary information, schedule ofchanges innet pension liability and related ratios
multiyear —Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund, schedule ofnet pension liability multiyear—
Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund, schedule ofcontributions multiyear - Firemen's Pension and
ReliefFund, notes to schedule ofcontributions —Firemen's Pension and ReliefFimd, schedule of
changes in netpension liability and related ratios multiyear - Policemen's Pension and Relief
Fund, schedule of thenetpension liability multiyear - Policemen's Pension and ReliefFund,
schedule of contributions multiyear - Policemen's Pension andReliefFund, andnotesto
schedule ofcontributions - Policemen's Pension and ReliefFund onpages 90through 97 be
presented to supplement thebasic financial statements. Such information, although nota partof
thebasic financial statements, is required bythe Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential partof thefinancial reporting forplacing thebasic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance withauditing
standards generally accepted in theUnited States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods ofpreparingthe informationand comparingthe information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit ofthe basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assuranceon the informationbecause the limited procedures
do not provideus with sufficient evidenceto express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose offorming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City ofFairmont, West Virginia's basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures offederal awards is presented for purposes ofadditional analysis as required by
U.S. Office ofManagement and Budget Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility ofmanagement and were derived fi*om and
relate directly to the underlying accoimting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
ofthe basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States ofAmerica. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and the schedule ofexpenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by GovetnmentAuditing Standards

In accordance with GovernmentAuditing Standards^ we havealsoissued ourreportdated
January 21,2016, on our consideration ofthe City ofFairmont, West Virginia's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliancewith certainprovisionsof laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purposeofthat report is to
describethe scope of our testing of internalcontrol over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part ofan audit performed in accordance
with Government AuditingStandards in consideringthe City of Fairmont, West Virginia's
intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

January 21,2016



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Component

Unit
Business Sanitarv

Governmental Type Sewer
Activities Activities Total Board

$ 1,938,973 $ 780,180 $ 2,719,153 $ 407,446
7,725,455 -0- 7,725,455 -0-
2,276,437 806,360 3,082,797 330,550

51,939 ( 40,724) 11,215 ( 11,215)
-0- 271,230 271,230 30,629

5,398 10,197 15,595 11,444
3,139,962 9,017,476 12,157,438 3,031,504
9.428.595 58.535.514 67.964.109 18.847.329

24.566.759 69.380.233 93.946.992 22.647.687

53,578 49,161 102,739 43,137

Assets

Cash

Investments

Receivables

Internal balances

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Restricted assets

Capital assets, net
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributionsand proportionate share
ofcontributions

Employer contributionssubsequent to measurement
period 239.850 231.416 471.266 173.538
Total deferred outflows ofresources 293.428 280.577 574.005 216.675

Liabilities

Accounts payable 474,901 481,884 956,785 72,754
Claims payable 231,079 -0- 231,079 -0-
Other accrued expenses 453,288 19 453,307 32,308
Accrued other post employment benefits 3,161,786 925,094 4,086,880 742,957
Unearned revenues 102,000 -0- 102,000 -0-
Customer deposits 28,740 162,411 191,151 -0-
Accrued interest payable -0- 429,526 429,526 -0-
Long-term liabilities

Due within one year 453,432 2,630,104 3,083,536 325,039
Due in more than one year 59.105.192 41.546.902 100.652.094 4.710.416
Total liabilities 64.010.418 46.175.940 110.186.358 5.883.474

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan investments 1.109.526 456.767 1.566.293 354.231
Total deferred inflow ofresources 1.109.526 456.767 1.566.293 354.231

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 9,131,063 15,088,749 24,220,312 14,468,620
Restricted 135,874 7,929,971 8,065,845 3,031,504
Unrestricted f49.527.194^ 9.383 ( 49.517.81 n ( 873.4671

Total net position $r40,260,257^ $ 23.028.103 17.232.6541 % 16.626.657

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotesare an integral partof this statement.



Function/Programs

Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Streets and transportation
Sanitation

Culture and recreation
Social services

Community development
Benefits paid

Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities
Water

Building Commission
Parking

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component Units
Sanitary sewer board

aXY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF ACITVinES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Charges for
Operating Capital

Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

2,617,148 $ 60,886 $ -0- $ -0-
8,375,804 1,567,067 -0- 45,953
1,825,133 1,607,909 -0- -0-
1,343,170 1,343,165 -0- 3,000

159,167 2,075 38,312 -0-
2,035 -0- -0- -0-

24,703 22,915 53,653 103,284
58.514 -0- 165.895 -0-

14.405.674 4.604.017 257.860 152.237

7,526,883 9,049,285 -0- -0-
429,009 -0- -0- -0-
137.603 140.938 -0- -0-

8.093.495 9.190.223 -0- -0-

22.499.169 $ 13.794.240 $ JU52Jm

4.507.397 $ 4.448.878 $ -0- $ -0-

Net CExnensel Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Component

Unit
Business Sanitary

Governmental Tvpe Sewer
Activities Activities Total Board

$( 2,556,262) $
( 6,762,784)
( 217,224)

2,995
( 118,780)
( 2,035)

155,149
107.381

( 9.391.5601

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-
-0-

iQr
-0-

$( 2,556,262) $
( 6,762,784)
( 217,224)

2,995
( 118,780)
( 2,035)

155,149
107.381

( 9.391.5601

-0-

-0-

-0-

1,522,402 1,522,402
( 429,009) ( 429,009)

3.335 3.335
-0-

( 9.391.5601

1.096.728

1.096.728

1.096.728

( 8.294.8321

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0- -0- -0- ( 58,519)



QTY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF ACIXVinES (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Function/Programs

General Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem
Business and occupation
Alcoholic beverage
Utility service
Hotel occupancy
Animal control
Gas and oil severance
Other

Inteigovemmental state
Licenses and permits
Video lottery and gaming income
Investment income
Franchise fees
Reimbursements
Gain (loss) on disposal ofcapital assets
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

Change in net position before transfers
Transfers between activities
Change in net position after transfers between activities

Net position - beginning - restated

Net position - ending

Expenses
Charges for

Services

Program Revenues

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are anintegral part of this statement.

Net (Expense') Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Component

Unit

Governmental
Business Sanitarv

Type Sewer
Activities Activities Total Board

$ 2,222,959 $ -0- $ 2,222,959 $ -0-
5,249,638 -0- 5,249,638 -0-

228,422 -0- 228,422 -0-
1,105,458 -0- 1,105,458 -0-

59,072 -0- 59,072 -0-
5,018 -0- 5,018 -0-

33,995 -0- 33,995 -0-
46,003 -0- 46,003 -0-
62,779 -0- 62,779 -0-

196,027 -0- 196,027 -0-
113,444 -0- 113,444 -0-
202,954 34,341 237,295 24,935
248,446 -0- 248,446 -0-

20,035 -0- 20,035 -0-
( 625) 736 111 -0-

30.071 -0- 30.071 -0-
9.823.696 35.077 9.858.773 24.935

432,136 1,131,805 1,563,941 ( 33,584)
( 411.546^ 411.546 -0- -0-

20,590 1,543,351 1,563,941 ( 33,584)

(40.280.347^ 21.484.752 (18.795.5951 16.660.241

$f40.259.757J S 23.028.103 $(17,231.6541 $ 16.626^



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
FUND BALANCE SHEETS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Coal Other Total

General Severance Governmental Governmental

Fimd Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash $ 1,701,720 $ 22,338 $ 214,915 $ 1,938,973
Investments 6,061,502 -0- 1,663,953 7,725,455
Receivables, net ofallowances:

Taxes 1,411,211 18,134 -0- 1,429,345
Accounts 568,374 -0- -0- 568,374
Other 68,038 -0- 109,017 177,055
Interest 5,428 -0- 865 6,293

Due from (to):
Internal balances 129,139 -0- ( 77,200) 51,939
Other governments 95,370 -0- -0- 95,370

Prepaid expenses 5,398 -0- -0- 5,398
Restricted assets 3.139.962 -0- -0- 3.139.962

TOTAL ASSETS $ 13,186.142 $ 40,472 $ 1.911.550 $ 15.138.164
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Coal Other Total

General Severance Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accoimts payable $ 432,420 $ -0- $ 42,481 $ 474,901
Claims payable 43,554 -0- 187,525 231,079
Other accrued expenses 453,288 -0- -0- 453,288
Accrued compensated absences 307,435 -0- -0- 307,435
Accrued other post employment benefits 3,161,786 -0- -0- 3,161,786
Unearned revenues 102,000 -0- -0- 102,000
Customer deposits 28.740 -0- -0- 28.740

Total liabilities 4.529.223 -0- 230.006 4.759.229

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred taxes 208.957 -0- -0- 208.957

Total deferred inflows ofresources 208.957 -0- -0- 208.957

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

ofresources 4.738.180 -0- 230.006 4.968.186

Fund Balances

Nonspendable 5,398 -0- -0- 5,398
Committed 1,895,195 40,472 -0- 1,935,667
Restricted 133,008 -0- 2,866 135,874
Assigned 2,398,227 -0- 1,678,678 4,076,905
Unassigned 4.016.134 -0- -0- 4.016.134

Total fimd balances 8.447.962 40,472 1.681.544 10.169.978

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND

FUND BALANCES $ 13.186.142 $ 40.472 $ 1.911.550 $ 15.138.164

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integralpart ofthis statement.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
RECONaLIATION OF FUND BALANCE SHEETS OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

Fund balance, fund level statement June 30,2015 $ 10,169,978

Thetotal fund balance of the Cityof Fairmont's governmental funds differs from
net positionofthe governmental activities reported on the Statement ofNet Position
as follows:

Someliabilitiesare not due and payablein the currentperiod and therefore, are not
reported in the fund level statements:

Obligations imder capital leases ( 297,032)
Unfunded pension and postretirement obligation (57,930,678)
Accrued compensated absences - due in more thanoneyear ( 1,023,479)

Capitalassets, that are used in governmental activities and are purchased or constructed,
the costs of those assets are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. However,
the Statement ofNet Position includes those assets and their associated accumulated

depreciation. 9,428,595

Someassets do not provide currentfinancial resourcesand are not reported as assets in
the fund level statements:

Reduction in deferred revenue at June 30,2015 208,957

Deferred inflows and outflows related to pension activity are not required to be reported
in the funds but are required to be reported at the government-wide level:

Deferred outflow - Changes in employerportion and differences between contributions
and proportionate share ofpension expense 53,578

Deferred outflow - Employer contributions to pension plan after measurement date 239,850

Deferred inflow - Differences between projected and actual investment earnings ( 1.109.5261

Net position ofgovernmental activities $ f40.259.7571

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integralpart ofthis statement.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Coal Other Total

General Severance Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

Revenues

Taxes (including interest and penalties):
Ad valorem $ 2,213,314 $ -0- $ -0- $ 2,213,314
Business and occupation 5,249,638 -0- -0- 5,249,638
Alcoholic beverage 228,422 -0- -0- 228,422
Utility service 1,105,458 -0- -0- 1,105,458
Hotel occupancy 59,072 -0- -0- 59,072
Animal control 5,018 -0- -0- 5,018
Gas and oil severance 33,995 -0- -0- 33,995
Other 46,003 -0- -0- 46,003

Licenses and permits 196,027 -0- -0- 196,027
Intergovernmental:

Federal -0- -0- 153,891 153,891
State -0- 62,779 47,999 110,778

Charges for services 4,053,592 -0- -0- 4,053,592
Contributions:

From employer -0- -0- 165,895 165,895
Video lottery and gaming income 113,444 -0- -0- 113,444
Fines and forfeits 521,825 -0- -0- 521,825
Donations 41,397 -0- 19,962 61,359
Investment income 216,226 2 57,854 274,082
Franchise fees 248,446 -0- -0- 248,446
Reimbursements 20,035 -0- -0- 20,035
Gain (loss) on investments ( 59,055) -0- ( 12,073) ( 71,128)
Gain (loss) on sale of capital asset 948 -0- -0- 948
Miscellaneous 38.676 -0- -0- 38.676

Total revenues 14.332.481 62,781 433.528 14.828.790
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aTY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTD)
FOR THE nSCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Coal Other Total

General Severance Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

Expenditures
General government $ 2,562,573 $ -0- $ 185,066 $ 2,747,639
Public safety 6,592,263 -0- 49,955 6,642,218
Streets and transportation 2,076,631 52,986 -0- 2,129,617
Sanitation 1,343,170 -0- -0- 1,343,170
Culture and recreation 149,339 -0- 11,890 161,229
Social services 2,035 -0- -0- 2,035
Community development -0- -0- 141,647 141,647
Retirement ofdebt service:

Principal 189,554 -0- -0- 189,554
Interest 17,009 -0- -0- 17,009

Benefit payments -0- -0- 58.514 58.514
Total expenditures 12.932.574 52,986 447.072 13.432.632

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over
(under) expenditures 1.399.907 9,795 ( 13.544) 1.396.158

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in -0- -0- 16,000 16,000
Operating transfers (out) ( 390.946^ -0- ( 36.600) ( 427.546)

Total other financingsomces (uses) ( 390.946^ -0- ( 20.600) ( 411.546)

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing (uses) 1,008,961 9,795 ( 34,144) 984,612

Fund balance at beginningofyear 7.439.001 30,677 1.715.688 9.185.366

Fund balance at end ofyear $ 8.447.962 $ 40,472 $ 1.681.544 S 10.169.978

The accompanying ind^endent auditor's report and notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net change infund balance - total govenunental funds $ 984,612

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement ofActivities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays asexpenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life
of the assets. This is theamount bywhich capital assets exceeded depreciation
inthe current period. 134^3 j7

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds at June 30,2015:

Recognition ofdeferred income 9,645

Capital leases and bonds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
enteringinto capital leases increases long-termliabilities in the StatementofNet Position.
Repayment of capital lease obligations andbonds arean expenditure in thegovernmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Repayment of obligation under capital lease 189,547

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities donot require theuseof current
financial resources andtherefore arenotreported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Loss on disposal of capital assets ( 625)
Change in net pension obligation (l ,528,984)
Change in long-term accrued compensated absences 59,668

Certain pension expenses in the Statement ofActivities are recognized on the accrual
basis ofaccounting in accordance with GASB 68:

Amoimt of pension expenditures at fund modified accrual level 240,276
Amoimtofpension expenses recognizedat governmentwide level ( 67.866)

Change in Net Position ofGovernmental Activities $ 20.590

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Business Type Activities

Component
Unit

Sanitary

BuildioR Sewer

Water Commission Parldns Total Board

ASSETS

Cutrent Assets

Cash $ 674,056 $ 29,744 $ 76,380 $ 780,180 $ 407,446
Receivables, net ofallowances:

Accounts 743,246 -0- 4,742 747,988 330,550
Other -0- -0- 100 100 -0-

Notes -0- 56,286 -0- 56,286 -0-

Interest 1,986 -0- -0- 1,986 -0-

Internal balances ( 74,703) -0- 33,979 ( 40,724) ( 11,215)
Prepaid expenses 10,197 -0- -0- 10,197 11,444
Inventory, at cost 271.230 -0- -0- 271.230 30.629

Total current assets 1.626.012 86.030 115.201 1.827.243 768.854

Noncurrent Assets

Restricted assets 9.017.476 -0- -0- 9.017.476 3.031.504

Capital Assets
Land 227,647 846,693 -0- 1,074,340 346,889
Buildings -0- 4,031,820 139,060 4,170,880 -0-

Land improvements -0- 4,462,177 98,198 4,560,375 -0-

Structures and improvements 18,669,836 -0- -0- 18,669,836 9,799,063
Building improvements -0- 467,297 1,242 468,539 -0-

Transmission and distribution 56,095,921 -0- -0- 56,095,921 29,185,314
Machinery and equipment 3,017,000 16,193 29,907 3,063,100 3,633,798
OfiGce furniture and equipment -0- -0- 25,014 25,014 -0-

Vehicles -0- -0- 20,750 20,750 -0-

Construction in progress 2,547,248 -0- -0- 2,547,248 13,170
Less: Accumulated depreciation f29.572.3301 f2.477.0231 fl 11.1361 f32.160.4891 f24.130.9051

Net capital assets 50.985.322 7.347.157 203.035 58.535.514 18.847.329

Total assets 61.628.810 7.433.187 318.236 69.380.233 22.647.687

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and proportionate share
ofcontributions 48,150 -0- 1,011 49,161 43,137

Employer contributions subsequent to measurement
period 226.676 -0- 4.740 231.416 173.538

Total deferred outflows of resources 274.826 -0- 5.751 280.577 216.675
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Water

Business Type Activities

Building

Commission Parking Total

Component

Unit

Sanitary

Sewer

Board

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities (payable £rom
current assets)
Notes payable $ 146,478 $ 78,376 $ -0- $ 224,854 $ -0-
Accounts payable 478,987 -0- 2,897 481,884 72,754
Other accrued expenses 19 -0- -0- 19 32,308
Other post employment benefits 925,094 -0- -0- 925,094 742,957
Accrued compensated absences 290.348 -0- 2.069 292.417 49.193

Total current liabilities (payable fi-om
current assets) 1.840.926 78.376 4.966 1.924.268 897.212

Current Liabilities payable firom
restricted assets)
Revenue bonds payable 1,973,645 139,188 -0- 2,112,833 275,846
Accrued revenue bond interest paj^ble 422,070 7,456 -0- 429,526 -0-

Customer deposits 162.411 -0- -0- 162.411 -0-

Total current liabilities (payable £rom
restricted assets) 2.558.126 146.644 -0- 2.704.770 275.846

Long-Term Liabilities (net of current
portion)
Revenue bonds payable 37,691,843 3,130,841 -0- 40,822,684 4,102,863
Notes payable 48,482 237,912 -0- 286,394 -0-

Customer advances 6,569 -0- -0- 6,569 101,057
Accrued compensated absences -0- -0- -0- -0- 171,482
Net pension obligation 422.727 -0- 8.528 431.255 335.014

Total long-term liabilities (net of
current portion) 38.169.621 3.368.753 8.528 41.546.902 4.710.416

Total liabilities 42.568.673 3.593.773 13.494 46.175.940 5.883.474

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan investments 447.404 -0- 9.363 456.767 354.231

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 11,124,874 3,760,840 203,035 15,088,749 14,468,620
Restricted 7,929,971 -0- -0- 7,929,971 3,031,504
Unrestricted ( 167.286^ 78.574 98.095 9.383 ( 873.4671

Total net position $ 18.887.559 $ 3.839.414 $ 301.130 $ 23.028.103 $ 16.626.657

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business Type Activities

Water

Building

Commission Parking Total

Component

Unit

Sanitary

Sewer

Board

Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 9,049,285 $ -0- $ 140,938 $ 9,190,223 $ 4,440,519
Miscellaneous -0- -0- -0- -0- 8.359

Total operating revenues 9.049.285 -0- 140.938 9.190.223 4.448.878

Operating Expenses
Personal services 1,613,636 -0- 57,831 1,671,467 1,733,797
Administrative and general 878,443 9,664 29,734 917,841 391,732
Collection and pumping -0- -0- -0- -0- 148,661
Treatment and di^osal -0- -0- -0- -0- 727,056
Billing and collection -0- -0- -0- -0- 236,035
Rents and utilities 541,961 -0- 8,521 550,482 -0-
Bad debt expense 51,113 -0- -0- 51,113 -0-
Fuel and oil 62,312 -0- -0- 62,312 -0-
Materials and supplies 582,069 -0- 17,272 599,341 -0-
Depreciation 2,394,073 300,308 15,114 2,709,495 1,154,272
Benefits 471.429 -0- 9.131 480.560 -0-

Total operating expenses 6.595.036 309.972 137.603 7.042.611 4.391.553

Operating income (loss) 2.454.249 ( 309.9721 3.335 2.147.612 57.325

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 73,797 5 10 73,812 24,935
Gain (loss) on investments ( 39,471) -0- -0- ( 39,471) -0-
Gain (loss) on disposal ofcapital assets 736 -0- -0- 736 -0-
Interest and fiscal charges ( 931.8471 ( 119.0371 -0- ( 1.050.8841 ( 115.8441

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ( 896.7851 ( 119.0321 10 ( 1.015.8071 f 90.9091

Income (loss) before nonoperating grants and
capital contributions 1,557,464 ( 429,004) 3,345 1,131,805 ( 33,584)

Contributions fi'om other funds -0- 319,908 157,062 476,970 -0-
Contributions to other funds -0- -0- ( 65.4241 ( 65.4241 -0-

Change in net position 1,557,464 ( 109,096) 94,983 1,543,351 ( 33,584)

Total net position - beginning - restated 17.330.095 3.948.510 206.147 21.484.752 16.660.241

Total net position - ending S 18,887,55Q $ 3.839.414 $ 301.130 $ 23,028,103 $ 16.626.657

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are anintegral part of this statement.
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aXY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

Business Type Activities

Component

Unit

Sanitarv

Sewer

Water Commission Parkine Total Board

Cash Flows firom Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 9,056,367 $ -0- !I 140,608 $ 9,196,975 $ 4,465,533
Receipts from other sources -0- 319,908 55,038 374,946 -0-
Payments to suppliers (2,978,713) ( 18,962) ( 69,719) (3,067,394) (1,544,238)
Payment to employees fl.608.672^ -0- ( 58.178) n.666.850) n.699.179)

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 4.468.982 300.946 67.749 4.837.677 1.222.116

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
(Increase) decrease in restricted assets 2,044,684 -0- -0- 2,044,684 ( 237,947)
Repayment of revenue bonds (1,823,197) (134,238) -0- (1,957,435) ( 270,713)
Proceeds from revenue bonds 1,055,475 -0- -0- 1,055,475 -0-
Repayment ofnotes payable ( 152,214) ( 73,296) -0- ( 225,510) -0-
Interest expense ( 953.6411 n 17.244) -0- n.070.885) ( 115.844)

Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities 171.107 1324.778) -0- ( 153.671) ( 624.504)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition ofcapital assets (4,510,298) -0- ( 63,646) (4,573,944) ( 559,281)
Interest on investments 73.781 5 10 73.796 24.935

Net cash (used in) provided by
investing activities f4.436.5171 5 ( 63.636) f4.500.148) ( 534.346)

Net increase (decrease) in cash 203,572 ( 23,827) 4,113 183,858 63,266

Cash at beginning ofyear 470.484 53.571 72.267 596.322 344.180

Cash at end ofyear $ 674,056 $ 29.744 $ 76.380 $ 780.180 $ 407.446
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTD)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business Tvoe Activities

Building

Water Commission Parking Total

Component

Unit

Sanitary

Sewer

Board

Reconciliation ofoperating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

(loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:

$ 2,454,249 $(309,972) $ 3,335 $ 2,147,612 $ 57,325

Depreciation and amortization 2,394,073 300,308 15,114 2,709,495 1,154,272
(Gain) loss on disposal ofcapital assets 735 -0- -0- 735 6,500
Transfers (to) from other funds -0- 319,908 91,638 411,546 -0-

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable 7,082 6,408 ( 330) 13,160 16,655
Due from (to) other funds ( 10,718) ( 344) ( 34,887) ( 45,949) 3,746
Prepaid expenses 525 -0- -0- 525 ( 886)
Inventory ( 36,116) -0- -0- ( 36,116) 9,085
Deferred outflow ofresources - changes in

proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions ( 48,150) -0- ( 1,011) ( 49,161) ( 43,137)

Deferred outflows ofresources - employer
contributions subsequent to measurement period ( 226,676) -0- ( 4,740) ( 231,416) ( 173,538)

Deferred outflows ofresources - employer
contributions during measurement period 222,403 -0- 4,487 226,890 176,255

Increase (decrease) in:
Accoimts payable ( 248,200) ( 15,362) ( 3,656) ( 267,218) 18,535
Other accrued expenses ( 504) -0- -0- ( 504) ( 8,473)
Other post employment benefits 57,342 -0- -0- 57,342 57,576
Customer deposits 18 -0- -0- 18 -0-

Customer advances 6,569 -0- -0- 6,569 -0-

Accrued compensated absences 4,964 -0- ( 347) 4,617 34,618
Net pension obligation ( 556,018) -0- ( 11,217) ( 567,235) ( 440,648)
Deferred inflow of resources - net difference

between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments 447.404 -0- 9.363 456.767 354.231

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities $ 4.468.982 $ 300,946 $ 67.749 $ 4.837.677 $ 1.222.116

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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aXY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Variance

With Final

Actual Budget to Actual Budget
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetarv GAAP Amounts Favorable

Original Final Basis) Difference GAAP Basis (Unfavorable)

Revenues

Taxes (including interest and
penalties):
Ad valorem $ 2,297,450 $ 2,297,450 $ 2,213,314 $ 9,645 $ 2,222,959 $( 84,136)
Business and occupation 5,585,000 5,530,000 5,249,638 -0- 5,249,638 ( 280,362)
Alcoholic beverage 175,000 217,000 214,045 -0- 214,045 ( 2,955)
Utility service 1,115,000 1,108,000 1,105,458 -0- 1,105,458 ( 2,542)
Hotel occupancy 50,000 61,000 59,072 -0- 59,072 ( 1,928)
Animal control 5,000 5,000 5,018 -0- 5,018 18
Gas and oil severance 18,000 33,994 33,994 -0- 33,994 -0-
Other 29,000 29,000 26,885 -0- 26,885 ( 2,115)

Licenses and permits 182,400 210,300 210,404 -0- 210,404 104
Charges for services 3,882,205 3,887,355 4,065,820 -0- 4,065,820 178,465
Fines and forfeitures 230,000 230,000 293,568 -0- 293,568 63,568
Donations -0- -0- 3,085 -0- 3,085 3,085
Investment income 1,500 12,270 64,559 -0- 64,559 52,289
Franchise fees 260,000 260,000 248,446 -0- 248,446 ( 11,554)
Video lottery and gaming income 117,000 109,800 113,444 -0- 113,444 3,644
Miscellaneous 117.550 60.999 65.702 -0- 65.702 4.703

Total revenues 14.065.105 14.052.168 13.972.452 9.645 13.982.097 ( 79.716)

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Streets and transportation
Sanitation

Culture and recreation

Social services

Total expenditures

(Deficiency) excess ofrevenues
(under) over expenditures

3,343,347
6,651,326
2,506,478
1,361,778

200,313
1.863

4,174,781
6,767,648
3,420,540
1,361,778

242,758
2.163

3,508,592
6,357,018
2,347,245
1,343,170

149,339
2.035

( 130,491)
1,534,631

( 312,492)
-0-

( 2,062)
-0-

3,378,101
7,891,649
2,034,753
1,343,170

147,277

im

666,189
410,630

1,073,295
18,608
93,419

128
14.065.105 15.969.668 13.707.399 1.089.586 14.796.985 2.262.269

( 1.917.5001 265.053 (1.079.9411 ( 814.8881 2.182.553
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aiY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS (CONTD)

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in $
Operating transfers (out)

Total other financing sources
(uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear $

Budeeted Amounts

Actual

(Budeetarv

Budeet to

GAAP

Actual

Amounts

Variance

With Final

Budeet

Favorable

Orieinal Final Basis') Difference GAAP Basis fUnfavorablel

-0- $ 12,500 $ 12,500 $ -0- $ 12,500 $ -0-

-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

-0- 12.500 12.500 -0- 12.500 -0-

-0- (1,905,000) 277,553 (1,079,941) ( 802,388) 2,182 553

-0- 1.905.000 2.666.639 r 14.3561 2.652.283 761.639

-0- $ -0- $ 2-944.192 $ f1.094-2971 $ 1-849-895 $ 2,944-192

Explanation of Differences:
(1) The City budgets for capital expenditures as a current period expenditure rather than a capital

expenditure on the accrual basis of accounting.

(2) The amount reported as "fund balance" on the budgetary basis ofaccounting derives fi*om the basis
ofaccounting used in preparing the City's budget. This amoimt differs fi-om the fund balance
reported in the statement ofrevenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances because ofthe
cumulative effect oftransactions such as those described above.

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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Revenues

aXY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

COAL SEVERANCE FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actual Budget to

Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary GAAP

Original Final Basis) Difference

Actual

Amounts

GAAP

Basis

Variance

With Final

Budget

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Interest $ 20 $ 20 $ 2 $ -0- $ 2 $( 18)
Intergovernmental:

State 73.000 60.000 62.779 -0- 62.779 2.779

Total revenues 73.020 60.020 62.781 rO= 62.781 2.761

Expenditures
Streets and transportation 73.020 72.020 52.986 -0- 52.986 19.034

Total expenditures 73,020 72.020 52.986 iQi 52.986 19,034

(Deficiency) excess ofrevenues (under)
over expenditures -0- ( 12.000) 9.795 zQz 9.795 21.795

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Operating transfers (out) -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Total other financing sources (uses) -0- -0- -0- rOr -0- -0-

Net change in fund balance -0- ( 12,000) 9,795 -0- 9,795 21,795

Fund balance at begimiing ofyear -0- 12.000 30.677 -Cb 30.677 18.677

Fimd balance at end ofyear $ ^ $ -0- $ 40.472 $ ^ $ 40.472 $ 40.472

Explanation of Differences:
(1) TheCitybudgets for capital expenditures as a current period expenditure ratherthan a capital

expenditure on the accrual basis ofaccounting.

(2) Theamount reported as "fund balance" on the budgetary basisof accounting derives from thebasis
ofaccotmtingused in preparing the City's budget. This amount differs from the fund balance
reported in the statementofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fundbalancesbecauseofthe
cumulative effect of transactions such as those described above.

The accompanying independent auditor's report andnotesare an integral part of this statement.

23



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Assets

Cash

Investments

Receivables:

Other

Interest

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Net Position

Held in trust for pension benefits

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes areanintegral partof thisstatement.
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Pension

and

Relief

$ 113,883
6,413,227

6,198
2.023

6.535.331

-0-

$ 6.535.331



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA

HDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Additions

Contributions:

Employer
Employees
Insurance premium tax allocation
Net contributions

Investment income:

Net appreciation in fair value ofinvestments
Interest income and dividends

Capital gains (losses)
Net investment income

Miscellaneous

Total additions

Deductions

General and administrative

Benefit payments
Total deductions

Net increase

Net position - beginning ofyear

Net position - end ofyear

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Pension

and

Relief

$ 1,576,850
295,091
742.987

2.614.928

( 171,052)
145,578
165.953

140,479

41

2.755.448

2,387
2.771.513

2.773.900

( 18,452)

6.553.783

$ 6.535.331



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Theaccounting policies ofthe City of Fairmont, West Virginia (theCity), conform to generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary
of significant accounting policies:

(a) Reporting Entity
TheCityof Fairmont, WestVirginia is a municipal corporation governed by an elected
mayor, andnine member council. The accompanying financial statements present the
government and it's component units as required by generally accepted accounting
principles.

The services provided by the government and accounted for within these financial
statements includepublicsafetyfor the CityofFairmont, West Virginia, healthand
sanitationservices, culturaland recreational programs, and other governmental services.

Theaccompanying financial statements present the government as required by the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. In determining whetherto
include a governmental department, agency, commission or organization as a component
unit, the government must evaluate eachentityas to whethertheyare legally separateand
financially accountable based on the criteria set forby the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (CASE). Legal separateness is evaluated on the basis of: (1) its
corporatename, (2) the right to sue and be sued and (3) the ri^t to buy, sell or lease and
mortgageproperty. Financial accountability is based on: (1) the appointment ofthe
governing authority, and(2) the ability to impose will, or (3) the providing of specific
financial benefit or impositionof specific financial burden. Another factor to consider in
this evaluation is whefiier an entity is fiscally dependent on the City.

TheCitycomplies with GASH Statement No. 61, "7%e FinancialReporting Entity:
Omnibus an Amendment ofGASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34". This statement
established standards for defining and reporting component units in the financial
statements of the reporting entity. It defines component unitsas legally separate
organizations forwhich thecomponent unitnot only hasa fiscal dependency on the
reporting entitybut alsoa financial benefit or burden relationship mustbe present
between the reporting entity and the entity that is to be included asa component unit. In
addition, an entity may be included as a component unit in the financial statements of the
reportingentity, if the reporting entity's management determines that it wouldbe
misleading to exclude them.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Blended Component Units

The entities below are legally separate from the City and meet GAAP criteria for
componentunits. These entities are blended with the primarygovernmentbecause they
provideservicesentirelyor almost entirelyto the City.

The Fairmont BuildingCommission serves City ofFairmont, West Virginia, by providing
facilities for the City. The Commission leases these facilities to the Cityin accordance
withleaseagreements. This fund accounts for the debtservices, receipts andexpenses of
the system. This fund is reportedas a major proprietaryfund. The BuildingCommission
acquires propertyand debt on behalf of the City. The CityofFairmontBuilding
Commission is reported as an enterprise fund.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component imits are entities whichare legally separate from the City,
but are financially accountable to the City, or whose relationship withthe Cityis such
thatexclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Because ofthe natureofservices theyprovideand the City's abilityto imposeits will on
them or a financial benefit/burden relationship exists, the following component units are
discretely presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14 (as amended by GASB
Statement No. 39). The discretely presentedcomponent units are presentedon Ae
government-wide statements.

TheFairmontSanitarySewer Board serves all the citizens of the CityofFairmont and is
governed by a threememberboard comprised of the CityManager and two other
members appointedby council. The rates for user charges and bond issuance
authorizations are approved by the government's elected council.

(b) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Thegovemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effectofinterfund activity
has beenremoved from thesestatements. Governmental activities, whichnormally are
supported by taxesand intergovernmental revenues, arereported separately from
business-type activities, which relyto a significant extent on fees and charges forsupport.
Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate
componentunits for which the primary governmentis financially accountable.

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part ofthesenotes.
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aXY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the directexpenses of a
givenfiinction areoffsetby program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specificfunction. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers
or applicants whose purchase, use, or directlybenefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a givenfunction and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements ofa particularfunction. Taxes and other items
not properlyincludedamong programrevenuesare reported insteadas generalrevenues.

Separate financial statements areprovided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, eventhoughthe latterare excluded from the governmental-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental fimds andmajor individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
Combining financial statements for the nonmajor governmental funds are included as
supplementary information.

(c) Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economicresources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietaryfund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues arerecorded when eamedandexpenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing ofrelated cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied and
collectible. Grants and similar itemsarerecognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reportedusing the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenuesare
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
available whentheyare collectible within the current period or soonenough thereafter to
pay liabilities ofthe currentperiod. For this purpose,the government considers revenues
to be available ifthey are collectiblewithin 60 days ofthe end ofthe current fiscal
period. Expenditures generallyare recordedwhen a liabilityis incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt serviceexpenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims andjudgments, arerecorded onlywhenpayment is
due.

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part of thesenotes.
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Property taxes, franchise taxes, interest and special assessments are susceptible to accrual.
Also, certain taxpayer-assessed revenues suchas business andoccupation and utility
taxesare accrued as revenue at yearend. Onlythe portionofspecial assessments
receivable due withinthe current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual
as revenueof the current period. Other receipts and taxes becomemeasurableand
available when cash is receivedby the governmentand are recognized as revenueat that
time.

Entitlements and shared revenues arerecorded at the time of receipt or earlier ifthe
susceptible to accrual criteria aremet. Expenditure-driven grants arerecognized as
revenue when the qualifying expenditures havebeenincurred andall other grant
requirements have been met.

The government reports the following major governmental fimds:

The Generalfund is the government's primaryoperating fimd. It accounts for all
financial sources ofthe general government, exceptthoserequired to be accounted for
in another fund.

The Coal Severance Taxfund, a special revenue fund, accounts for revenues and
expenditures from a severance taxplaced on coal that is distributed to West Virginia
municipalities.

The government reports the following majorproprietary funds:

TheParkingfund serves the City byproviding parking facilities to thepublic. This
fund accounts forthe receipts andexpenses of operating these parking facilities.

The Waterfund serves the citizens of theCityof Fairmont byproviding water services
to the community. This fund accounts for the receipts andexpenses of operating this
facility. TheWater Fund is served by a board of directors. Therates for user charges
andbond issuanceauthorizations are approved by the board of directors andthe
government's elected council.

The BuildingCommission is also a major proprietaryfund.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Additionally, the govemment reports the following fund types:

Governmental Fimd Types
Governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources

measurement focus. Only current assets and current liabilities are generally included
on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of
available resources during a given period.

GeneralFund: The General Fimd is the general operating fund ofthe City. It is used
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fimd.

SpecialRevenue Funds: Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds
ofspecific revenuesources(other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or
major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

Proprietaty Fund Types
Proprietary flmds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus;

the accounting objectivesare determination ofnet income, financial position, and cash
flows. All assetsand liabilitiesassociated with a proprietary flmd's activitiesare
included on its statement ofnet position.

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operatedin a maimersimilar to privatebusinessenterprises - where the
intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, includingdepreciation) of
providing goods and services to the generalpublic on a continuingbasis be financed
or recovered primarilythrou^ user charges; or (b) where the governingbody has
decided that periodic determinationofrevenues earned, expensesincurred, and/or net
income is appropriatefor capitalmaintenance, public policy,managementcontrol,
accountability, or other purposes.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds account for assets heldby the Cityin a trustee or agency capacity.
Pensiontrust funds are accounted for in essentiallythe samemanneras proprietary
funds.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart ofthese notes.
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As a general rule, the effect ofinterflind activityhas been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported asprogram revenues include: 1)charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, orprivileges provided, 2)operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Expenses for the enterprise fund
include the administrative expense, and depreciation ofcapital assets. All revenuesand
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Uabilides, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position
The accoimts of the City are organized into funds, each ofwhich is considered to be a

separate accounting entity.

1. Deposits and Investments

The City of Fainnont, West Virginia's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be
cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities
ofless than three months from the date ofacquisition. For purposes ofthe
Statement ofCash Flows, restricted assets may be considered cash equivalents
based on liquidity.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor
Certain Investments andfor External Investment Pools, the City reports its
investments at fair value, except for non-participating investment contracts
(certificates ofdeposits and repurchase agreements) which are reported at costs,
which approximates fair value. All investment income, including changes in fan-
value of investments, are recognized as revenue in the operating statement. Fair
value is determined by quoted market prices.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.

31



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.
Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last
reported sales price at current exchange rates. Managed funds related to the
retirement systems not listed on an established market are reported at estimated fair
value as determined by the respective fund managers based on quoted sales prices of
xmderlying securities. Cash deposits are reported at carrying amount, which
reasonably estimates fair value.

State statutes authorize the government to invest in the State Investment Pool or the
Municipal Bond Commission or to invest such funds in the following classes of
securities: Obligations of the United States or any agency thereof, certificates of
deposit (which mature in less than one year), general and direct obligations of the
State of West Virginia; obligations of the federal mortgage association;
indebtedness or guaranteed by the federal government; pooled mortgage trusts
(subject to limitations); indebtedness ofany private corporation that is properly
graded in the top three ratings, at the time ofacquisition; interest earning deposits
which are fully insured or collateralized; and mutual funds registered with the
S.E.C. which have fund assets over three hundred million dollars.

State statute §8-13-22c places limitations on the aforementioned investments include
the following: at no time can investment portfolios consist ofmore than seventy-
five percent of the indebtedness ofany private corporation nor can the portfolio
have over twenty-five percent ofits portfolio consisting ofthe indebtedness ofa
private corporation's debt which matures in less than one year; at no time may more
than nine percent ofthe portfolio be invested in securities issued by a single private
corporation or association; and at no time can more than sixty percent ofthe
portfolio be invested in equity mutual funds.

Municipal Pension Funds are govemed as to type ofinvestments by fVest Virginia
Code §8-22-22. Pension funds are permitted to invest in all ofthe above mentioned
types of investments with the exceptions of: (1) Direct and general obligations of
the State and (2) Pooled mortgage trusts. Additionally, pension funds are permitted
to invest funds in the following categories of investments: (1) Repurchase
agreements and (2) Common stock, securities convertible into common stocks, or
warrants and rights to purchase such securities. Pension funds have different rules
concerning the purchase ofmarketable debt securities.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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The following restrictions apply only to pension portfolios and are separate and
distinct from the limitations mentioned above: (1) fixed income securities which
are issued by one issuer (with the exception of the United States government) are
not to exceed five percent ofthe total pension fimd assets; and (2) at no time can the
nonreal estate equity portion ofthe portfolio exceed seventy-fivepercent ofthe total
portfolio.

2. Receivables and Payables

Interjund Transactions
Activity between fiinds that are representative of lending/borrowingarrangements
outstanding at the end ofthe fiscal year are referred to as either "interfimd
receivables or payables" (i.e., the current portion of interfimd loans) or "advances
to/from other ftmds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfimdloans). All other
outstanding balances between fimds are reported as "due to/from other fimds."
Any residual balance outstanding between the governmental activities and the
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements
as "internal balances".

Trade Receivables

All trade receivables are shown at their gross value and, where appropriate, are
reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.

Property Tax Receivable
All current taxes assessed on real and personal property may be paid in two
installments; the first installment is payable on September first ofthe year for
which the assessment is made, and becomes delinquent on October first; the
second installment is payable on the first day the followingMarch and becomes
delinquent on April first. Taxes paid on or before the date when they are payable,
including both first and second installments, are subject to a discoxmt oftwo and
one-halfpercent. Ifthe taxes are not paid on or before the date in which they
become delinquent, including both first and second installments, interest at Ae rate
ofnine percent annum is added for the date they become delinquent imtil the date
they are paid.

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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All municipalitieswithin the State are authorized to levy taxes not in excess of the
following maximum levies per $100of assessed valuation: On Class I property,
twelve and five-tenths cents (12.5 cents); On ClassIIproperty, twenty-five cents
(25 cents) ; On Class IVproperty, fiftycents (50 cents). In addition, municipalities
mayprovidefor an election to lay an excesslevy; the rates not to exceed statutory
limitations,provided at least sixty percent ofthe voters cast ballots in favor of the
excess levy.

The rates levied by the Cityper $100of assessed valuation for eachclass of property
for the fiscal year ended Jvme 30,2015, were as follows:

Assessed

Class of Valuation For Current

Property Tax Purposes Expense

Class II $ 295,239,440 25.00 cents
Class rv $ 354,715,550 50.00 cents

3. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain proceeds set
aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the Statement ofNet
Position becausetheir use is limitedby applicable bond covenants.

4. Capital Assets and Depreciadon

Capital assets, which includeproperty,plant, and equipment, and infi-astructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, andsimilar items), arereported in theapplicable
governmental or business-type activitiescolumns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of$1,000 for governmental funds and $5,000 or more and estimated
to have a useful life in excess ofone year for the water and sewer fund. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at
the date ofdonation.

The costs ofnormal maintenanceand repairs that do not add to the value ofthe assets
are materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalizedin proprietaryfunds
as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of
proprietary fund capital assets is not reflected in the capitalized value ofthe asset
constructed, net of interest earned on the invest proceeds during the same period.

Capital assets ofthe primary government, as well as the component units, are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Governmental Funds

Buildings and improvements 20 - 50 years
Infrastructure 20 - 65 years
Machinery and equipment 5-20 years
Vehicles 8-10 years

Proprietary Funds

Buildings 25 - 50 years
Improvements 10 - 20 years
Utility plant 10 - 20 years
Equipment 3-10 years

5. Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in the govemment-wide financial
statements consists ofunpaid, accumulated armual sick and accrued vacations. The
liability has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for
both employees who currently are eligible to receive termination payments and other
employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such
payment upon termination are included.

6. Long-Term Obligadons

In the govemment-wide financial statements, the proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement ofnet position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the strai^t-line method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discoimt.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fimd types recognize bond premiums
and discounts, during the current period. The face amount ofdebt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses.

7. Fund Balances

Equity Classification
Effective July 1,2010, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 54 "Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions," which establishes new
standards for accounting and financial reporting that are intended to improve the
clarity and consistency of the fund balance information provided to financial report
users. The classifications are based primarily on the extent to which the City is
boimd to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which the amounts in those
funds can be spent. Fund balances are reported in the following categories:

Net Position Classifications:

GASB 63 - Financial Reporting ofDeferred Outflows ofResources, Deferred
Inflows ofResources, and Net Position - divided net position for Government-
wide net position into three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets - consist of the historical cost ofcapital assets
less accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that
was used to finance those assets plus deferred outflows ofresources less
deferred inflows ofresources related to those assets.

b. Restricted net position - consists ofnet position that is restricted by the City's
creditors (for example through debt covenants), by the state enabling
legislation (through restrictions on shared revenues), by grantors (both federal
and state), and by other contributors.

c. Unrestricted - all other net position is reported in this category

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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GASB Statement No. 54 - "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
TypeDefinitions" - divided fund balance for fund level into five components:

a. Nonspendable - Amoxmts that cannot be spent either because they are in a
nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

b. Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific puiposes because of the
City's code, state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors
or creditors.

c. Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined
by a formal action by the City's coimcil.

d. Assigned - Amounts that are designed by the City's council for a particular
purpose but are not spendable until there is a majority vote approval by the
City's council.

e. Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

The City Council is the government's highest level ofdecision-making authority.
The Council would take formal action to establish, and modify or rescind, a fund
balance commitment or to assign fund balance amounts to a specific purpose. The
government has adopted a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for
programs with multiple revenue sources. For puiposes of fund balance
classification, expenditures are to be spent fi:om restricted fund balance first,
followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly
imassigned fund balance. The government has the authority to deviate fi-om this
policy if it is in the best interest ofthe City.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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8. Change in Accounting Principle

During the fiscal year ended June 30,2015 the City adopted the following GASB
statements.

GASB 68 —Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions —an amendment
ofGASBStatement No, 27- This Statement replaces the requirements of
Statement No. 27, Accountingfor Pensions by State and Local Governmental
Employers, as well as the requirements ofStatement No. 50, Pension Disclosures,
as they relate to pensions that are provided throughpension plans administered as
trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. This GASB is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2014.

GASB 69 - Government Combinations andDisposals ofGovernment
Operations - This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting
related to governmentcombinations and disposalsofgovernmentoperations.
This GASB is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,2013 and
had no effect on the accompanying financial statements.

GASB 70 - Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees - This Statement will enhance comparability of financial statements
among governments by requiring consistent reporting by those governments that
extend nonexchange financial guarantees and by those governments that receive
nonexchange financial guarantees. This GASB is effective for fiscal years ending
after June 15,2013 and had no effect on the accompanying financial statements.

GASB 71 - Pension Transitionfor Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date - an amendment ofGASB Statement No, 68 - This
Statement will eliminate the source ofpotential significant understatement of
restatedbeginning net position and expense in the first yearof implementationof
GASB Statement 68 in the accrual basis financial statements. This GASB is

effective for fiscal years beginning after Jime 15,2014.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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9. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows ofresources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows ofresources, represents a consumption ofnet
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow ofresources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section ofdeferred inflows ofresources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows ofresources, represents an acquisition ofnet position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow ofresources
(revenue) until that time.

10. Pensions

For purposesofmeasuringthe net pension liabilityand deferredoutflows/inflows of
the resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position ofCity ofFairmont, West Virginia's Retirement System
(PERS) and additions to/deductions firom the Plans' fiduciarynet positionhave been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the PERS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (includingrefundsof employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

11. Stabilization Arrangements

The governmenthas created a stabilization arrangement in accordancewith West
Virginia Code §8-37-3. The government may appropriate a sum to the arrangement
firom any surplus in the general fund at the end ofeach fiscal year or fi*om other
money available. The amoimt ofmoney committed to the arrangement may not
exceed thirty percent of the government's most recent general fund budget. The
money may be used for any unforeseenshortfalls. The stabilizationbalanceat fiscal
year-end was $2,973,071.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.

39



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

12. Use of Estimates

Thepreparation offinancial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimatesand assumptionsthat aifect the reported amountsofassets and liabilities
and disclosure ofcontingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial
statements andthe reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

II. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgetary Information
Annual budgets are adopted on a basisconsistent withgenerally accepted accounting principles
for the General Fund and the CoalSeverance Tax Special Revenue Fund, exceptthat the
amounts held for stabilization are not included for budgetingpurposes. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The governing body ofthe City is required to hold a meeting or meetings between the seventh and
twenty-eighth days ofMarch to ascertainthe financial condition of the City and to prepare the
levy estimate (budget) for the fiscal year commencing July 1. The budget is then forthwith
submitted to the State Auditor for approval. The governing body then reconvenes on the third
Tuesday in April to hear objections from the public and formally lay the levy.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. Transfers of
appropriations between departments and revenue related revisions to the budget require approval
from the governing council and then submission to the State Auditor for approval. Revisions
become effective when approved by the State Auditor and budgeted amoimts in the financial
statements reflect only such approved amoimts. The governing body made the following
material supplementary budgetary appropriations throughout the year:

General Fund

Amount Description

$ 831,434 General Government Expenditure Increase
116,322 Public Safety Expenditure Increase
914,062 Streets and Transportation Expenditure Increase
45,445 Culture and Recreation Expenditure Increase

300 Social Services Expenditure Increase

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Coal Severance

Amount

$(1,000)

HI. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Deposits and Investments
At year end, the government had the following investments:

Description

Streets and Transportation Expenditure (Decrease)

Policemen's Pension and Relief

Money Market
Certificates ofdeposit
Mutual Funds

Interest Rate Risk

Certificates ofDeposit

Fair

Value

$ 48,701
229,913

4.515.622

$ 4.794.236

Total

Credit Risk Rating

Standard &

Poor's and

Fitch

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

MoodVs

Investment

Services

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Less than

1 vear 1-5 vears

$ 229.913 $ 59.987 $ 169.926

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Concentration of Credit Risk:

The govemment's investment policy does not allow for an investmentin anyone issuer
that is in excess of five percent ofthe government's total investment. In accordance
with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, it requires
disclosure when the investment in any one issuer equals or exceeds 5% ofthe total
amount ofinvestments. At year end, the policemen's pension fund had the following
investments held with these issuers:

Issuer Fair Value Percent

American Fds Mortgage Fd C1A $ 132,953 2.94%

American Mutual Fund C1A 302,979 6.71%

Bond Fund ofAmerica C1A 627,102 13.89%

Capital Income Builder Fund A 803,576 17.80%

Capital World Grw & Inc Fund A 367,941 8.15%

Growth Fund ofAmerica C1A 232,801 5.16%

Income Fund ofAmerica Fimd A 742,202 16.44%

Inter Bond Fd ofAmerica C1A 469,760 10.40%

Investment Co ofAmerica Fd A 317,543 7.03%

New Perspective Fund C1A 209,601 4.64%

Washington Mutual Invs Fd C1A 309.164 6.84%

$ 4-515.622 100.00%

Firemen's Pension and Relief

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates ofdeposit
Bonds

Mutual Funds

Fair

Value

103,478
99,771
71,491

1.344.251

$ 1.618.991

Credit Risk Ratine

Standard & MoodVa

Poor's and Investment

Fitch

Not Rated

Not Rated

A+-A2

Not Rated

Services

Not Rated

Not Rated

A+-A2

Not Rated

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Interest Rate Risk

Less than More than

Total 1 vear 1 - 5 vears 6 - 10 years 10 vears

Certificates ofDeposit $ 99,771 $ -0- $ 99,771 $ -0- $ -0-
Bonds 71.491 iQi -0- =0= 71.491

$ 171.262 $ ^ $ 99.771 $ ^ $ 71,491

Fair Unrealized

Value Cost Gain ILossI

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The government's investment policydoesnot allowfor an investment in anyone issuer
that is in excess of five percent ofthe government's total investment. In accordance
with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, it requires
disclosure when the investment in any one issuer equals or exceeds 5% ofthe total
amountof investments. At year end, the firemen's pension fundhad the following
investments held with these issuers:

Issuer Fair Value Percent

FHLMC Good Pool $ 872 0.06%

GNMA Pool 81 0.01%

Wells Fargo & Co Mtn Step Up 70,535 4.98%

American Intl Grw & Inc A 62,336 4.40%

American Mutual Fund C1A 76,075 5.37%

Bond Fund ofAmerica C1A 102,227 7.22%

Capital Income Builder Fimd A 107,764 7.61%

Capital World Grw & Inc Fund A 199,882 14.12%

Europacific Growth Fund C1A 103,838 7.33%

Fundamental Investors Fund A 130,587 9.22%

Growth Fund ofAmerica C1A 171,907 12.14%

Income Fund ofAmerica Fund A 182,475 12.89%
Inter Bond Ed ofAmerica C1A 152.785 10.79%

Washington Mutual Invs Fd C1A 54.378 3.86%

$ 1.415.742 100,00%

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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Credit Risk

State law limit investments as described in Note LD.1. It is thegovernment's policy to
limit its investments as statedin the WestVirginia Code. Thegovernment doesnot have
a policyfor creditrisk in addition to governing statutes.

Concentration ofCredit Risk
The government's investment policydoesnot allow for an investment in anyone issuer
that is in excess offive percent ofthe government's total investment. In accordancewith
GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment RiskDisclosures, requiresdisclosure
when the investment in any one issuer equals or exceeds 5% ofthe total amountof
investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

For deposits, the government could be exposed to risk in the event ofa bank failure where
the government's deposits may not be retumed. The government's policy for custodial
credit risk is to require a depositorybond as collateral for all investments. At year end,
the primary government's, component units' and fiduciary fimds'bank balances were
$18,315,541, which were collateralized with a depository bond.

For Investments, the government could be exposed to risk in the event ofthe failure of the
counterparty where the government will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession ofan outside party. The
government has adopted State Code requirements as its policy for custodial cr^it risk.
At year end, the investment balances were $7,725,455. The entire balance is considered
secured.

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the Statement ofNet Position ofthe

government and Statement ofNet Position of the Fiduciary Fimds is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,240,482
Investments - collateralized and secured 29.327.624

Total $ 32.568.106

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,240,482
Cash and investments - restricted 15,188,942
Investments 14.138.682

Total $ 32.568.106

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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aXY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Receivables at year end for the government's individual major and nonmajor funds, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate are as
follows:

Receivables:

Taxes

Accounts

Other

Grant

Notes

Interest

Total

Coal Other Total
General Severance Water Building Nonmaior Primarv Fiduciary
Fund Fund Fund Commission Parking Funds Government Funds

Component

Unit

Sanitary

Sewer

Board

$ 1,411,211 $ 18,134 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,429,345 $ -0- $ -0-
568,374 -0- 743,246 -0- 4,742 -0- 1,316,362 -0- 330,550
163,408 -0- -0- -0- 100 -0- 163,508 6,198 -0-

-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 109,017 109,017 -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- 56,286 -0- -0- 56,286 -0- -0-

5.428 -0- 1.986 -0- -0- 865 8.279 2.023 -0-
$ 2.148.421 $ 18.134 $ 745.232 $ 56,286 $ 4.842 $ 109.882 $ 3.082.797 $ U21

The above accounts receivable are shown net ofallowance for doubtful accounts as follows:

Receivables:

Accounts

Total

The accompanying independent auditor's report is anintegral part of these notes.
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General

Fund

$ 448.391

$ 448.391

Water

Fund

$ 334.552

Component

Unit

Total Sanitary

Primary Sewer

Parking Government Board

$ 3.171

$ UU
$ 786.114 $ 294.066

$ 294.066
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Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenue
thatarenotconsidered tobe available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Governmental funds also defer revenue recognitionin connectionswith resources that
have beenreceived, but notyetearned. At the aid of thecurrent fiscal year, the various
components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue rqiorted in the governmental
funds were as follows:

Property taxes receivable

Total deferred revenue for governmental funds

$ 208.957

$ 208,957

C. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30,2015, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Governmental Activities

Non-depreciable Assets
Land $ 238.737 $ 37.566 $ -0- $ 276.303

Total non-depreciable assets 238.737 37.566 -0- 276.303

Depreciable Assets
Buildings 1,691,691 -0- -0- 1,691,691
Land improvements 664,133 51,638 -0- 715,771
Machinery and equipment 1,439,385 61,923 -0- 1,501,308
Building improvements 329,184 87,700 -0- 416,884
Office furniture and equipment 690,820 74,148 6,199 758,769
Vehicles 4,325,726 111,189 58,277 4,378,638
Infiastructure 27.933.135 957.691 -0- 28.890.826

Totals at historical cost 37,074,074 1,344,289 64,476 38,353,887
Less: Accumulated depreciation 28.017.908 1.247.538 63,851 29.201.595

Total depreciable assets 9.056.166 96.751 625 9.152.292

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 9,294,903 $ 134.317 $ 625 $ 9.428.595

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part of thesenotes.
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Begimiing Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Business-Type Activities

Water Fund

Non-depreciable Assets
Land $ 227,647 $ -0- $ -0- $ 227,647
Construction in progress 3.294.473 2.547.248 3.294.473 2.547.248

Total non-depreciable assets 3.522.120 2.547.248 3.294.473 2.774.895

Depreciable Assets
Structures and improvements 18,316,183 353,653 -0- 18,669,836
Transmission and distribution 51,387,469 4,708,452 -0- 56,095,921
Machinery and equipment 2.952.506 195.418 130.924 3.017.000

Totals at historical cost 72,656,158 5,257,523 130,924 77,782,757
Less; Accumulated depreciation 27.309.181 2.394.073 130.924 29.572.330

Total depreciable assets 45.346.977 2.863.450 -0- 48.210.427

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 48-869.097 S 5.410.698 $ 3,294,473 $ 50.985,322

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Building Commission

Non-depreciable Assets
Land $ 846.693 $ -0- $ lOr $ 846.693

Total non-depreciable assets 846.693 -0- iQi 846.693

Depreciable Assets
Buildings 4,031,820 -0- -0- 4,031,820
Land improvements 4,462,177 -0- -0- 4,462,177
Buildings improvements 467,297 -0- -0- 467,297
Machinery and equipment 16.193 -0- -0- 16.193

Totals at historical cost 8,977,487 -0- -0- 8,977,487
Less: Accumulated depreciation 2.176.715 300.308 ;Qi 2.477.023

Total depreciable assets 6.800.772 f300.3081 =Qi 6.500.464

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 7,647,465 $n00.3081 $ ^ X 7,347.157

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Business-Type Activities (Cont'd)

Parking Authority

Depreciable Assets

Bepinninp
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Buildings $ 137,440 $ 1,620 $ -0- $ 139,060
Land improvements 37,414 60,784 -0- 98,198
Buildings improvements -0- 1,242 -0- 1,242
Machinery and equipment 29,907 -0- -0- 29,907
Office furniture and equipment 25,014 -0- -0- 25,014
Vehicles 20.750 -0- -0- 20.750

Totals at historical cost 250,525 63,646 -0- 314,171
Less: Accumulated depreciation 96.022 15.114 iQi 111.136

Business-type activities capital assets, net S 154-503 $ 48.532 $ ^ $ 203.035

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Total

Non-depreciable Assets
Land $ 1,074,340 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,074,340
Construction in progress 3.294.473 2.547.248 3.294.473 2.547.248

Total non-depreciable assets 4.368.813 2.547.248 3.294.473 3.621.588

Depreciable Assets
Buildings 4,169,260 1,620 -0- 4,170,880
Land improvements 4,499,591 60,784 -0- 4,560,375
Structures and improvements 18,316,183 353,653 -0- 18,669,836
Building improvements 467,297 1,242 -0- 468,539
Transmission and distribution 51,387,469 4,708,452 -0- 56,095,921
Machinery and equipment 2,998,606 195,418 130,924 3,063,100
Office furniture and equipment 25,014 -0- -0- 25,014
Vehicles 20.750 -0- -0- 20.750

Totals at historical cost 81,884,170 5,321,169 130,924 87,074,415
Less: Accumulated depreciation 29.581.918 2.709.495 130.924 32.160.489

Total depreciable assets 52.302.252 2.611.674 -0- 54.913.926

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 56.671.065 $ 5.158.922 $ 3.294.473 $ 58.535.514

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Beeinning Endine

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Business-Type Activities (Cont'd)

Component Unit - Sewer Fund

Non-depreciable Assets
Land $ 346,889 $ -0- $ -0- $ 346,889
Construction in process -0- 13.170 -0- 13.170

Total non-depreciable assets 346.889 13.170 -0- 360.059

Depreciable Assets
Structures and improvements 9,741,211 57,852 -0- 9,799,063
Transmission and distribution 28,997,835 197,479 10,000 29,185,314
Machinery and equipment 3.343.018 290.780 -0- 3.633.798

Totals at historical cost 42,082,064 546,111 10,000 42,618,175
Less: Accumulated depreciation 22.980.133 1.154.272 3,500 24.130.905

Total depreciable assets 19.101.931 ( 608.1611 6,500 18.487.270

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 19.448.820 %( 594.9911 $ 6,500 $ 18.847.329

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General government $ 67,019
Public safety 345,745
Streets and transportation 799,724
Culture and recreation 26,728
Community development 8.322

$ 1.247.538

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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D. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
The compositionof interfundbalances as ofJune 30,2015, is as follows:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fxmd Amoxmt

Boards and Commissions Fund General Fxmd $ 1,690
Capital Reserve Fxmd Economic Development Grant Fxmd $ 43,990
Parking Fund Economic Development Grant Fxmd $ 34,900
Parking Fund Police Fxmd $ 128

Payroll Fund Parking Fxmd $ 1,049
General Fund Water Fxmd $ 11,522
Sanitary Sewer Board Water Fxmd $ 23,554
Payroll Fund Water Fxmd $ 39,627
Payroll Fxmd Sanitary Sewer Board $ 30,507
Sanitary Sewer Board Police Fxmd $ 211

Generd Fxmd Police Fxmd $ 23,942
Payroll Fxmd General Fxmd $ 130,909
General Fxmd Sanitary Sewer Board $ 4,473

Interfund Transfers:

Transfers Out:

General Fund

Economic Development Grant
Fimd

Parking Fund

Urban

Renewal

Authority

Parking Building

Fund Commission Total

$ 16,000 $ 120,462 $ 254,484 $ 390,946

-0-

-0-

36,600
-0-

-0-

65.424

36,600
65.424

$ 16.000 $ 157.062 $ 319.908 $ 492.970

Interfund transfersprovide appropriations to subsidizethe funds to support the programs
and activities of the government.

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integral part of these notes.

50



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

E. Fund Balance Detail

At year-end, the detail of the government's fund balances is as follows:

Coal

General Severance Nonmaior

Fund Fund Funds Total

Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenses $ 5.398 $ -0- $ -0- $ 5.398

Committed:

Public safety 151,495 -0- -0- 151,495
Streets and transportation 1,658,166 40,472 -0- 1,698,638
Health and welfare 85.534 -0- -0- 85.534

Total committed 1.895.195 40.472 -0- 1.935.667

Restricted:

Public safety 133,008 -0- -0- 133,008
Brownfield reclamation -0- -0- 2.866 2.866

Total restricted 133.008 -0- 2.866 135.874

Assigned:
Parks and recreation 31,694 -0- -0- 31,694
Streets and transportation 83,076 -0- -0- 83,076
Debt service 7,398 -0- -0- 7,398
Arts and humanities -0- -0- 8,365 8,365
Historical preservation 43,990 -0- 5,378 49,368
Economic development 563,100 -0- 957 564,057
Health and welfare -0- -0- 1,663,978 1,663,978
Capital projects 1,529,204 -0- -0- 1,529,204
Public safety 57,322 -0- -0- 57,322
Other escrows 82.443 -0- -0- 82.443

Total assigned 2.398.227 -0- 1.678.678 4.076.905

Unassigned 4.016.134 -0- -0- 4.016.134

Total fimd balance $ 8,447,962 $ 40.472 $ 1,681.544 S 10.169.978

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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F. Long-Term Debt
Long-term liability activity forGovernmental Activities for theyear ended Jime 30,2015

was as follows:

Beginning

Balance

486,579
1,396,675

57.991.805

Additions Reductions

$ -0-

-0-

-0-

$ 189,547
65,761
61.127

Ending
Balance

$ 297,032
1,330,914

57.930.678

Amounts

Due Within

One Year

$ 145,997
307,435

^

Amounts

Due After

One Year

151,035
1,023,479

57.930.678

Governmental Activities

Obligation under capital lease
Compensated absences
Net pension obligation

Governmental activities

long-term liabilities $ 59.875.059 $ 316.435 $ 59.558.624 $ 453.432 .t 59.105.192

The General Fundof the Cityof Fairmont entered into a leaseagreement on July25,2007
for theacquisition of a Pierce Aerial Platform FireTruck. This lease qualifies as a capital
lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the presentvalueofthe
minimum leasepayments as of the dateof its inception. The following is a schedule of
future minimum leasepayments required underthis capital leaseand the present valueof
the net minimum lease payments at June 30,2015:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2016

2017

Less: Amount representing interest

Present value offuture minimum lease payments

The accompanying independent auditor'sreport is an integral part of these notes.
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The General Fund of the Cityof Fairmont entered intoa leaseagreement on February 5,
2013 for the acquisition of a Pierce Responder Pumper for the fire department. This lease
qualifies as a capital lease for accoimting purposes and therefore, has been recordedat the
presentvalueofthe minimum leasepayments as ofthe date of its inception. The
following is a schedule offuture minimum leasepayments required imder this capital
lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30,2015:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2016 $ 56,705
2017 56.705

113,410
Less: Amount representing interest 2.109

Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 111.301

The following is a schedule ofall future minimum lease payments together with the
present value ofnet minimum lease payments as ofJune 30,2015:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2016 $ 156,069
2017 156.069

312,138
Less: Amount representing interest 15.106
Present value of foture minimum lease payments 297,032

Less: Current portion 145.997

Non-current portion $ 151.035

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Long-term liability activity for Business-Type Activities Unit for the year ended June 30,2015 was as follows;

Beginning
Balance

3,000,000
2,244,829

63,046
170,144

4,076,978
1,876,006
1,138,059

177,030

921,094

2,483,173
3,023,083

429,255

24,645,000
326.538

Additions Reductions

- $-0

-0-

-0-

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-
756,917
298,558

-0-

-0-

-0-

21,920
4,788

59,480
148,256
66,685
32,900
92,734

36,321

97,917
135,038

18,398

1,400,000
68.508

Ending
Balance

3,000,000
2,222,909

58,258
110,664

3,928,722
1,809,321
1,105,159

84,296

884,773

2,385,256
3,644,962

709,415

23,245,000
258.030

Amounts
Due Within

One Year

-0-

91,668
7,608

62,182
148,256
70,019
32,900
84,296

37,660

101,528
180,840
24,962

1,425,000
70.768

Amounts
Due After

One Year

3,000,000
2,131,241

50,650
48,482

3,780,466
1,739,302
1,072,259

-0-

847,113

2,283,728
3,464,122

684,453

21,820,000
187.262

Business-Type Activities
Bonds and Notes payable:

1999 Water Revenue Bonds
2008A Water Revenue Bonds
West VirginiaHousingDevelopment Fund
Chase Bs^
201 OA Water Revenue Bonds
20IOC Water Revenue Bonds
2010D Water Revenue Bonds
Page Valley Bank
Municipal BuildingLeaseRevenueBonds,

Series 2013A
Municipal Building Lease Revenue Bonds,

Series 2013B
Water Revenue Bonds Series 2013A
Water Revenue Bonds Series 2013B
Water Refunding Revenue Bonds Series

2012D
Wesbanco Bank, Inc.

Total bonds and notes payable

Other Long-term Debt:
Customer advances
Net pension obligation
Accrued compensated absences

Total other long-term debt

44,574,235 1,055,475 2.182.945 43.446.765 2.337.687 41.109.078

-0-
998,489
287.800

1.286.289

6,569
-0-

4.617
11.186

-0-
567,234

lO;
567.234

6,569
431,255
292.417
730.241

Total long-term debt-primary government $ 45.860.524 $ 1.066.661 $ 2.750.179 $ 44.177.006 $

The accompanying independent auditor's report is anintegral part of these notes.
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Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

Amounts
Due Within

One Year

Amounts
Due After
One Year

Component Unit
Bonds and notes payable:

2003 Sewerage Bonds
2007 Sewerage Bonds

Total bonds and notes payable

$ 327,726
4.321.696

4.649.422

$ -0-

-0-

-0-

$ 16,184 $
254.529

270.713

311,542
4.067.167

4.378.709

$ 16,188
259.658

275.846

$ 295,354
3.807.509

4.102.863

Other Long-term Debt
Customer advances

Net pension obligation
Accrued compensated absences

Total other long-term debt

101,057
775,662
186.057

1.062.776

-0-

-0-

34,618
34.618

-0-

440,648
-0-

440.648

101,057
335,014
220.675

656.746

-0-

-0-

49.193

49.193

101,057
335,014
171.482

607.553

Total long-term debt - component imit $ 5.712.198 $ 34.618 $ 711.361 $ 5.035.455 $ 325.039 $ 4.710.416

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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a. 1999 Series - Water Revenue Bonds

Series 1999WaterRevenue Bondsin the amountof$19,945,000 wereissuedpursuantto
an ordinance enacted by the City ofFairmont on November 10,1998 and sold as of
December 30,1998. Hie bonds mature serially through 2029 and bear interest from
4.50% to 5.25% per the following schedule.

Principal Interest
Maturity Amount Rate

2029 $ 3.000.000 5.25%

The 1999 bonds were issued by the City in order to: (1) to pay a portion of the costs of
acquisition and construction ofcertain additions, betterments and improvements to the
existing water system ofthe City, including capitalized interest on the Bonds; (2) to fund
a reserve account in each ofthe sinking funds; and (3) to pay certain costs ofissuance of
the Bonds and related costs.

The 1999 bonds are secured by a lien on and pledge ofthe net revenues derived from the
operation of the System. These bonds are insured by the Ambac Financial Group, Inc.
imconditionally guaranteeing the timely payment ofprincipal and interest on the 1999
Series Bonds.

The Series 1999 bonds shall be redeemable prior to their stated dates ofmaturity at the
option ofthe Issuer, as a whole at any time, or in part on any interest payment date, in
inverse order of their maturities and by lot within a maturity, at the respective
redemption prices as set forth in the bond ordinance.

As required by the 1999 Revenue Bond Ordinance, a sinking fund has been established
with the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. Moneys in the sinking fund are to
be used only for the purposes ofpaying principal of and interest on the bonds. Monthly
payments are required to be made into the sinking fund ofamounts equaling l/6th of the
amount ofinterest due on the next semiannual interest date plus l/12di of the amount of
principal due on the next principal payment date. The sinking fund account balance at
June 30, 2015 was $379,059.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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No additional payments arerequired to be made intothe sinking fund whenthe aggregate
amount in the sinking fund, including the reserve account, is equal to the aggregate
principal amount ofbonds outstanding plus the amount ofinterest due or thereafter to
become due on the bonds outstanding.

b. Water Revenue Bonds Series 2008A

The Series 2008A bonds wereissued by the Cityin orderto (i) paya portionof the costs
ofacquisition and construction ofcertain extensions, additions, bettermentsand
improvements to the waterworks system of the Cityof Fairmont, (ii) to fiilly fundthe
Series 2008A Bonds Reserve Account; and (iii) to pay certain costs ofissuance hereof
and related costs.

The 2008A bonds are secured by a lien on and pledge ofthe net revenues derived from the
operations ofthe System. Thesebonds are insuredby the Municipal Bond Insurance
Association unconditionally guaranteeing the timely payment ofprincipal and interest on
the 2008A Series Bonds.

The Series 2008A bonds shall be redeemable prior to their stated dates ofmaturity upon
written consent of the West Virginia Water Development Authority and the West
Virginia Bureau for Public Health and upon payment ofthe redemption premium.

As required by the 2008A Revenue Bond Ordinance, a sinking fund has been established
with the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. Moneys in the sinking fund are to
be used only for the purposes ofpaying principal ofand interest on the bonds. Monthly
payments are required tobemade into the sinking fund ofamounts equaling 1/6^ ofthe
amount ofinterest due onthe next semiannual interest date plus 1/12^ ofthe amount of
principal due on the next principal payment date. The sinking fund accoimt balance at
June 30,2015 was $100,479.

No additional payments are required to be made into the sinking fund when the aggregate
amount in the sinking fund, including the reserve, is equal to the aggregate principal
amount ofbonds outstanding plus the amount of interest due or thereafter to become due
on the bonds outstanding.

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Thefollowing is a schedule of future debt retirement based on current financing
arrangements:

Year Endine Jime 30. Princioal Interest Total

2016 $ 91,668 $ -0- $ 91,668
2017 91,668 -0- 91,668
2018 91,668 -0- 91,668
2019 91,668 -0- 91,668
2020 91,668 -0- 91,668

2021-2025 458,340 -0- 458,340
2026-2030 458,340 -0- 458,340
2031-2035 458,340 -0- 458,340
2036 - 2039 389.549 zQz 389.549

Total $ 2,222,909 $ ^ $ 2.222.909

c. West Virginia Housing Development Fund
On February24,2004 the MunicipalBuilding Commissionentered into a loan and pledge
agreement and signed a promissory note with the West Virginia Housing Development
Fund (Fund) to participate in its demolition loan program. The Municipal Building
Commission received $100,000 in loan proceeds to be repaid on or before April 1,2009
with interest on a sliding scale 0% to 5% per annum. On April 27, 2009 the Fund agreed
to modify the terms ofthe note and extend the due date to September 1,2013 with
interest continuing to accrue at 5.0%. These funds were made available to businesses
and individuals for their demolition needs. The Municipal Building Commission held
three notes totaling $96,006.58 with an additional amount ofcapitalized interest of
$13,109.16 for a total of$109,115.74 outstanding. The notes were due the sooner ofthe
sale or transfer of the property or March 1,2014. On April 29,2013 a second loan
modification was executed by the Fimd whereby all accrued and future interest was
forgiven on the loan and an immediate payment of $32,025.97, which represented the
cash balance in the demolition loan program, was made, reducing the loan balance to
$67,974.03. In addition, the Municipal Building Commission modified the terms on the
three notes it held, forgiving the paid and future interest and setting monthly payments of
principal to mirror payments due the Fund. Principal payments are due as follows:

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Year Ending June 30. Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 7,608 $ -0- $ 7,608
2017 8,421 -0- 8,421
2018 10,860 -0- 10,860
2019 10,860 -0- 10,860
2020 10,860 -0- 10,860
2021 9,649 9,649

Total $ 58.258 $ $ 58.258

Chase Bank Note Payable
On March 30,2007, the Water Fund ofthe City ofFairmontpurchaseda water filtration

system with loan proceeds fi"om Chase Bank. The loan bears interest at a rate of4.45%
and is payable in monthly installments of$5,487. The loan is securedby equipment.

Future debt retirement based on current financing arrangements at June 30,2015 is as
follows:

Year Ending June 30. Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 62,182 $ 3,666 $ 65,848
2017 48.482 904 49.386

Total $ 110,664 $ 4.570 $ 115.234

e. Water Revenue Bonds Series 2010A - West Virginia DWTRF Program
Water Revenue Bonds Series 201OA - West Virginia DWTRF Program Bonds in the

amountof$4,447,618 were issuedpursuant to an ordinanceenactedby the Cityof
Fairmont on December 15,2009 and supplemented by a resolution adopted on January
15,2010. The bonds were sold to the West Virginia Water Development Authority and
mature serially through December 1, 2041 and bear interest at 0%.

The Series 201OA bonds were issued by the City in order to (i) to pay a portion of the
costs ofacquisition and construction of certain additions, betterments and improvements
to the existing public waterworks system ofthe Issuer; and (ii) to pay certain costs of
issuance of the Bonds and related costs.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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The 201OA bonds were securedby a lien on and pledge ofthe net revenuesderived from
the operation of the system. Thebond is issued on a paritywithrespect to the liens,
pledgesand sourceofand securityfor payment ofprior issuedWaterRevenue Bondsof
the City ofFairmont.

The bondmaybe redeemed prior to is stateddate ofmaturity in wholeor in part, but only
with the expresswrittenconsentofthe West VirginiaWater Development Authorityand
the West Virginia Bureau for Public Health and upon the terms and conditions
prescribed by, and otherwise in compliance with, the ARRA Assistance Agreement by
and between the Issuer and the Authority, on behalfofthe West Virginia Bureau for
Public Health, dated January 21,2010.

As required by the 2010 Revenue Bond Ordinance, a Sinking Fund has been established
with the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. Moneys in the Sinking Fimd are
to be used only for the purpose ofpaying principal ofand interest on the bonds. The
sinking fund account balance at June 30,2015 was $160,637.

The following is a schedule of future debt retirement based on current financing
arrangement.

Year Ending June 30. Princinal Interest

2016 $ 148,256 $ -0-

2017 148,256 -0-

2018 148,256 -0-

2019 148,256 -0-

2020 148,256 -0-

2021-2025 741,280 -0-

2026-2030 741,280 -0-

2031-2035 741,280 -0-

2036 - 2040 741,280 -0-

2041 222.322

Total $ 3.928.722 $ ^

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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f. Water Revenue Bonds Series 2010C —West VirginiaDevelopmentAuthority
WaterRevenue Bonds Series20IOC - WestVirginia WaterDevelopment Authority
Bonds in the amoimt of $2,000,000 wereissued pursuant to anordinance enacted by the
Cityof Fairmont onDecember 15,2009andsupplemented bya resolution adopted on
January 15,2010. The bonds were sold to the West VirginiaWaterDevelopment
Authority and mature serially through October 1,2031 and bear interest at 5%.

The Series20IOC bonds were issuedby the City in order to (i) payprior notes; (ii) pay a
portion of the costs ofacquisition and construction ofcertain extensions, additions,
betterments and improvements to the existing public waterworks system ofthe Issuer;
(iii) pay interest on the Series 201OC bonds during the construction ofthe project and for
not more than 6 months thereafter; and (iv) pay certain costs ofissuance hereofand
related costs.

The 20 IOC bonds were secured by a lien on and pledge of the net revenues derived firom
the operation of the system. The bond is issued on parity with respect to the liens,
pledges and source ofand security for payment ofprior issued Water Revenue Bonds of
the City ofFairmont.

The bond may be redeemed prior to is stated date ofmaturity in whole or in part, but only
with the express written consent of the West Virginia Water Development Authority and
upon the terms and conditions prescribed by, and otherwise in compliance with, the
agreement between the City ofFairmont and the West Virginia Water Development
Authority dated January 21,2010.

As required by the 2010 Revenue Bond Ordinance, a Sinking Fund has been established
with the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. Moneys in the Sinking Fund are
to be used only for the purpose ofpaying principal ofand interest on the bonds. The
sinking fund account balance at June 30,2015 was $244,785.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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The following is a schedule of future debtretirement basedon current financing
arrangement.

Year Ending June 30. Principal Interest

2016 $ 70,019 $ 93,716
2017 73,520 85,128
2018 77,196 81,360
2019 81,056 77,403
2020 85,109 73,249
2021 89,364 68,887
2022 93,832 64,307
2023 98,524 59,499
2024 103,450 54,449
2025 108,623 49,147
2026 114,054 43,580
2027 119,757 37,734
2028 125,744 31,597
2029 132,032 25,153
2030 138,633 18,386
2031 145,565 11,281
2032 152.843 3.821

Total $ 1.809.321 $ 878.697

g. Water Revenue Bonds Series 2010D —West Virginia Infrastructure Fund
Water Revenue Bonds Series 2010D - West Virginia Infrastructure Fund Bonds in the

amount of$1,250,104 were issued pursuant to an ordinance enacted by the City of
Fairmont on December 15,2009 and supplemented by a resolution adopted on January
15,2010. The bonds were sold to the West Virginia Water Development Authority on
behalfof the West Virginia Infrastructure Fund and mature serially through December 1,
2049 and bear interest at 0%.

The Series 2010D bonds were issued by the City in order to (i) pay a portion of the costs
ofacquisition and construction of certain extensions, additions, betterments and
improvements to the public waterworks system ofthe City; and (ii) to pay certain costs
of issuance hereof and related costs.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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The 201OD bonds weresecured by a lien on and pledgeofthe net revenues derived from
the operation ofthe system. The bond is issuedon paritywithrespectto the liens,
pledges and source of and security for payment of prior issued WaterRevenue Bonds of
the City ofFairmont.

The bondmaybe redeemed prior to is stateddate ofmaturityin wholeor in part, but only
with the expresswritten consentofthe WestVirginiaDevelopment Authorityand the
West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Counciland upon the terms and
conditions prescribed by, and otherwisein compliancewith, the LoanAgreement by and
between the City ofFairmont and the West Virginia Water DevelopmentAuthority,on
behalfof the West Virginia Infrastructureand Jobs Development Council dated
January 21,2010.

As required by the 2010 Revenue Bond Ordinance, a Sinking Fund has been established
with the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. Moneys in the Sinking Fund are
to be used only for the purpose ofpaying principal of and interest on the bonds. The
sinking fund account balance at June 30,2015 was $14,540.

The following is a schedule of future debt retirement based on current financing
arrangement.

Year Ending June 30.

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021 -2025

2026-2030

2031 -2035

2036-2040

2041 -2045

2046-2049

Total

Principal

$ 32,900
32,900
32,900
32,900
32,900

164,500
164,500
164,500
164,500
164,500
118.159

$ 1.105.159

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

h. Page Valley Bank
On September 9,2009, the WaterFundofthe Cityof Fairmont borrowed funds from Page
Valley Bank throughComvestto finance the 2009 train #5 expansion. The loan bears
interest at a rate of4.60% and is payable in monthly installments of$8,245.

Future debt retirement based on current financing arrangements at June 30,2015 is as
follows:

Year Ending Jime 30. Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 84.296 $ 1.851 $ 86.147

i. Municipal Building Commission Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A
On March 4,2013 the Municipal Building Commission issued Municipal Building Lease

Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A in the amount of$965,435 with MVB Bank, Inc. as the
holder. The bonds are subject to mandatory redemption ofthe fourth day ofeach month
imtil and including March 4,2033 and pay interest of3.2%. This bond is payable solely
from the rent payable by the City pursuant to a lease agreement between the City and the
Building Commission dated January 18,2005. Upon expiration of the lease, the City has
the option to purchase the property from the Commission for $1. The bonds have a
principal balance of $884,773 as of the date ofthese financial statements and mature as
follows.

lar Ending June 30. Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 37,660 $ 27,764 $ 65,424

2017 38,883 26,541 65,424
2018 40,146 25,278 65,424
2019 41,450 23,974 65,424

2020 42,796 22,628 65,424
2021-2025 235,749 91,371 327,120
2026 - 2030 276,596 50,524 327,120
2031 -2033 171.493 7.860 179.353

Total $ 884^73 $ 275.940 $ 1.160.713

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Municipal Building Commission Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B
On March4,2015 the Municipal Building Commission issuedMunicipal Building Lease

Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B in the amoimt of $2,602,708 with MVB Bank, Inc. as the
holder. The bonds carryan interest rateof 3.20% per annum withprincipal and interest
payablemonthlyfor a term of20 years. The proceedsof this financing were used to pay
offthe USDA Rural DevelopmentBonds. At June 30,2015 there is a principalbalance
of$2,385,256 payable as follows:

Year Ending June 30. Princinal Interest Total

2016 $ 101,528 $ 74,848 $ 176,376
2017 104,825 71,551 176,376
2018 108,229 68,147 176,376
2019 111,744 64,632 176,376
2020 115,373 61,003 176,376

2021-2025 635,555 246,325 881,880
2026 - 2030 745,672 136,208 881,880

2031-2033 462.330 21.192 483.522

Total $ 2.385.256 $ 743.906 $ 3.129.162

k. Water Revenue Bonds Series 2013A - West Virginia DWTRF Program
Water Revenue Bonds Series 2013A - West Virginia DWTRF Program Bonds in the

amount of$3,780,000 were issued pursuant to an ordinance enacted by the City of
Fairmont on February 1, 2013. The bonds were sold to the West Virginia Water
Development Authority and mature serially through September 1,2034 and bear interest
at .5%.

The Series 2013A bonds were issued by the City in order to (i) to pay a portion of the
costs ofacquisition and construction of certain additions, betterments and improvements
to the existing public waterworks system ofthe Issuer; and (ii) to pay certain costs of
issuance ofthe Bonds and related costs.

The 2013A bonds were secured by a lien on and pledge of the net revenues derived from
the operation of the system. The bond is issued on a parity with respect to the liens,
pledges and source of and security for payment ofprior issued Water Revenue Bonds of
the City ofFairmont.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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The bond may be redeemed prior to is stated date ofmaturity in whole or in part, but only
with the express written consent of the West Virginia Water Development Authority and
the West Virginia Bureau for Public Health and upon the terms and conditions
prescribed by, and otherwise in compliance with, the Assistance Agreement by and
between the Issuer and the Authority, on behalfofthe West Virginia Bureau for Public
Health.

As required by the 2013 Revenue Bond Ordinance, a Sinking Fund has been established
with the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. Moneys in the Sinking Fund are
to be used only for the purpose ofpaying principal of and interest on the bonds. The
sinking fund account balance at Jxme30,2015 was $34,388.

The following is a schedule of future debt retirement based on current financing
arrangement.

Year Ending June 30. Princinal Interest Total

2016 $ 180,840 $ 17,886 $ 198,726
2017 181,745 17,430 199,175
2018 182,655 16,070 198,725
2019 183,571 15,384 198,955

2020 184,490 14,235 198,725
2021 -2025 936,408 53,805 990,213
2026-2030 960,098 33,530 993,628
2031-2034 835.155 9.426 844.581

Total $ 3.644.962 $ 177.766 $ 3.822.728

1. Water Revenue Bonds Series 2013B- West Virginia Infrastructure Fund
Water Revenue Bonds Series 2013B - West Virginia Infrastructure Fund Bonds in the

amount of$1,000,000 were issued pursuant to an ordinance enacted by the City of
Fairmont on February 1, 2013. The bonds were sold to the West Virginia Water
Development Authority on behalfof the West Virginia Infrastructure Fund and mature
serially through September 1,2044 and bear interest at 2%.

The Series 2013B bonds were issued by the City in order to (i) pay a portion ofthe costs
ofacquisition and construction ofcertain extensions, additions, betterments and
improvements to the public waterworks system of the City; and (ii) to pay certain costs
of issuance hereof and related costs.

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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The 2013B bonds were secured by a lien on and pledge ofthe net revenues derived from
the operation ofthe system. The bond is issued on parity with respect to the liens,
pledges and source ofand security for payment ofprior issued Water Revenue Bonds of
the City ofFairmont.

The bond may be redeemed prior to is stated date ofmaturity in whole or in part, but only
with the express written consent ofthe West Virginia Development Authority and the
West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council and upon the terms and
conditions prescribed by, and otherwise in compliance with, the Loan Agreement by and
between the City ofFairmont and the West Virginia Water Development Authority, on
behalfof the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council dated
February 1,2013.

As required by the 2013 Revenue Bond Ordinance, a Sinking Fund has been established
with the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. Moneys in the Sinking Fund are
to be used only for the purpose ofpaying principal ofand interest on the bonds. The
sinking fund account balance at June 30,2015 was $13,814.

The following is a schedule of future debt retirement based on current financing
arrangement:

lar Ending June 30. Princioal Interest Total

2016 $ 24,962 $ 19,446 $ 44,408
2017 25,465 18,943 44,408
2018 25,978 18,430 44,408
2019 26,502 17,906 44,408
2020 27,037 17,371 44,408

2021-2025 143,577 78,463 222,040
2026-2030 158,635 63,405 222,040

2031-2035 175,278 46,762 222,040
2036 - 2037 101.981 16.604 118.585

Total $ 709.415 $ 297.330 $ 1.006.745

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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m. Water Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012D
Water Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2012D in the amount of$30,000,000 were issued
pursuant to an ordinance enacted by the City ofFairmont on March 27,2012 and
supplemented by a resolution adopted on September 12,2012. The bonds mature
serially through July 1,2029 and bear interest from 2.00% - 4.00%.

The Series 2012D bonds were issued by the City in order to refinance the Series 1997A
bonds, Series 1998A bonds and a portion ofthe Series 1999 bonds and to finance the
cost of issuance.

The 2012D bonds were secured by a lien on and pledge ofthe net revenues derived from
the operation of the system. The bond is issued on a parity with respect to the liens,
pledges and source ofand security for payment ofprior Water Revenue Bonds ofthe
City ofFairmont.

The Series 2012D bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturity
on or after July 1,2019, at the option ofthe City at par plus accrued interest thereon to
the date set for redeption.

The Series 2012D bonds maturing on July 1,2029, are subject to annual mandatory
redemption prior to maturity by random selection on July 1 ofthe years and in the
principal amounts set forth below, at the redemption price of 100% ofthe principal
amount of each bond so called for redemption plus interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption:

Bonds maturing 2029

Year (July 11 Principal Amoimt

2028 $ 2,100,000
2029 $ 2,170,000

If less than all the Series 2012D bonds are redeemed, the Bonds to be redeemed shall be
identified by reference to the Series designation, date ofissue, CUSIP numbers and
maturity dates.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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As required by the 2012D Revenue BondOrdinance, a sinking fund has beenestablished
with theWest Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. Moneys in the sinking fund areto
be used onlyfor the purposeofpayingprincipal of and interest on the bonds. The
sinking fund account balance at June 30,2015 was $3,998,601.

The following is a schedule of future debtretirement basedon current financing
arrangement.

Endine June 30. Principal Interest Rate

2016 1,425,000 2.00%

2017 1,455,000 2.00%

2018 1,485,000 2.00%

2019 1,510,000 3.00%

2020 1,560,000 2.00%

2021 690,000 2.25%

2022 655,000 2.50%

2023 620,000 2.70%

2024 1,795,000 2.75%

2025 1,845,000 4.00%

2026 1,920,000 3.00%

2027 1,975,000 3.10%

2028 2,040,000 3.15%

2029 4.270.000 3.20%

$ 23.245.000

n. Sewer Revenue Bonds Series 2003A

Series 2003A Sewer Revenue Bonds in the amount of$600,000 are being issued pursuant
to an ordinance enacted by the City ofFairmont on May 13,2003. The bonds mature
serially through September 1,2034 and bear interest at 0%.

The 2003A bonds were issued by the City ofFairmont in order to: (1) to pay a portion of
the costs of acquisition and construction of certain additions, betterments and
improvements to the existing sewerage system ofthe City; (2) to fund a reserve account
in the sinking fund; and (3) to pay certain costs of issuance of the Bonds and related
costs.

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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The 2003Abonds are securedby a lien on and pledgeof the net revenuesderived from the
operation of the System.

Thefollowing is a schedule of future debtretiranent based on current financing
arrangements:

Year Ending Jime 30. Princioal Interest Total

2016 $ 16,188 $ -0- $ 16,188
2017 16,188 -0- 16,188
2018 16,188 -0- 16,188
2019 16,188 -0- 16,188
2020 16,188 -0- 16,188

2021-2025 80,920 -0- 80,920
2026 - 2030 80,920 -0- 80,920
2031-2035 68.762 iQz 68.762

Total $ 311,542 $ $ 311.542

o. Sewer Revenue Bonds Series 2007

Series 2007 Sewer Revenue Bonds in the amount of$5,577,760 are being issued pursuant
to an ordince enacted by the City ofFairmont. The bonds mature serially through
March 1,2029 and bear interest at 2%.

The 2007 bonds were issued by the City of Fairmont in order to pay a portion of the costs
ofacquisition and construction ofcertain additions, betterments and improvements to the
existing sewerage system of the City.

The 2007 bonds are secured by a lien on and pledge of the net revenues derived from the
operation ofthe System.

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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The following is a scheduleoffuturedebt retirementbased on current financing
arrangements:

Year Ending June 30. Princinal Interest Total

2016 $ 259,658 $ 79,404 $ 339,062
2017 264,890 74,172 339,062
2018 270,227 68,835 339,062
2019 275,672 63,390 339,062
2020 281,228 57,834 339,062

2021-2025 1,481,306 214,004 1,695,310
2026-2029 1.234.186 115.270 1.349.456

Total $ 4,067.167 $ 672.909 $ 4.740.076

Note Payable - Wesbanco Bank, Inc.
On December 31,2013 the Commission purchased property at 109 Merchant Street,

formerly known as the Westfianco East Side facility by issuing a Promissory Note to
WesBanco Bank, Inc. in the amoimt of$360,000.00. The note is payable solely from the
rent payable by the City pursuant to a lease agreement between the City and the
Commission dated December 31,2013. Upon expiration of the lease, the City has the
option to purchase the property from the Commission for $1. In addition, the
Commission leased a portion ofthe facility back to WesBanco Bank, Inc. as a secure
location for its drive-through customers. The terms of the leaseback include two years
without lease payments in lieu ofconstruction ofan additional drive-throu^ for the
Commission. Lease rent is payable by WesBanco Bank, Inc. in year three in amount of
$12,000, beginning January 1,2016 with monthly payments of$1,000.00 due on the first
day of each month. The lease shall terminate on December 31,2016 unless otherwise
renewed by options for three additional three year terms with escalators. The note is
payable in sixty monthly installments with an interest rate of3.25% per annum. The
note has a principal balance of$258,030 as of the date of these financial statements.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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The following is a schedule of future debt retirement based on current financing
arrangements:

Year Endine June 30. Princinal Interest Total

2016 $ 70,768 $ 7,338 $ 78,106
2017 73,102 5,004 78,106
2018 75,514 2,592 78,106
2019 38.646 367 39.013

Total $ 258.030 $ 15,301 S 273.331

Restricted Assets

The balances of the restricted asset accounts for the business-type activities are as follows:

Business-Type Activities

Construction and maintenance accoimts $ 2,736,515
Other post employment benefits 1,169,607
Revenue bond accounts 4,946,323
Security deposit accounts 165.031

Total restricted assets $ 9.017.476

Component Unit

Construction and maintenance accounts $ 2,174,728
Other post employment benefits 529,170
Revenue bond accounts 327,606
Security deposit accounts ::02

Total restricted assets $ 3.031.504

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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H. Benefits Funded by the State of West Virginia
For the yearended June30,2015, the StateofWestVirginia contributed estimated
payments on behalf of the governments public safetyemployees as follows:

Plan Amoimt

Policemen's Pension and ReliefFund $ 326,196
Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund 416.791

Total $ 742.987

State contributions are fundedby allocations ofthe State'sinsurancepremium tax.

I. Prior Period Adjustment
The following net position required restatement as ofthe beginning ofthe year as follows:

Water Fund

Net position as previously stated $ 18,009,673

Understatement ofnet pension liability -
adoption ofGASB 68 ( 756,342)

Understatement of OPEB trust income 76.764

Net position as restated $ 17.330.095

Parking Fund
Net position as previously stated $ 221,405

Understatement ofnet pension liability -
adoption ofGASB 68 ( 15.258)

Net position as restated $ 206.147

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Component Unit —Sanitary Sewer Board
Net position as previously stated $ 17,259,648

Understatement ofnet pension liability-
adoption ofGASB 68 ( 599.407)

Net position as restated $ 16.660.241

Governmental Activities

Net position as previously stated $ 552,373

Understatement ofnet pension liability -
adoption of GASB 68 (40.832.7201

Net position as restated $ (40.280.3471

IV. Other Information

A. Risk Management
The government is exposed to various risks ofloss related to torts, theft of, damage to and

destruction ofassets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the
government carries insurance for umbrella (general liability) insurance for these various
risks.

Workers' Compensation Fund (WCF): Private insurance companies could begin to offer
workers compensation coverage to government employers beginning July 1,2010.
Workers compensation coverage is provided for this entity by Brickstreet Insurance.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable a loss has occurred and the amount ofthe loss
can be reasonably estimated.

B. Contingent Liabilities
The government is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome ofthese

lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion ofthe government's counsel that
resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial condition of

the government.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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V. Employee Retirement System and Plans

Plan Descriptions, ContributionInformation, and Funding Policies
The City ofFairmont, West Virginiaparticipatesin two single employer, public employee
retirementsystems. Assets are held separatelyand may be used only for the paymentofbenefits
to the members of the respective plans, as follows:

The Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund (PPRF) provides retirement benefits for substantially
all full-time police employees. The PPRF's Board consists ofa chairmanwhich is the city
manager and four members fi:om the City police department. The City is authorized in
accordance with State Code §8-22 to establish and maintain this plan. Unless otherwise
indicated, PPRF information in this Note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation,
JxmeSO, 2015.

The Firemen'sPensionand Relief Fimd(FPRF)provides retirement benefitsfor substantially
all full-time fire employees. The FPRF's Board consists of a chairmanwhich is the city
manager and four members fi*om the City fire department. The City is authorized in
accordance with State Code §8-22 to establish and maintain this plan. Unless otherwise
indicated, FPRF information in this Note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation,
June 30,2015.

Actuarial valuationsare required to be performedonce everythree yearsper state statute.
However, the actuarial valuations can be performed in shorter intervals at the discretion ofthe
PPRF and FPRF's Board.

The investment policies of the PPRF and the FPRF are restricted by State Code and may be
restricted further as determined by the Boards. There were not significant changes in the
investment policies for the current year.

Memberships ofthe plans are as follows:

GrouD PPRF FPRF Totals

Active employees 44 59 103

Inactive, nonretired members 1 -0- 1

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits M _4Q 74

178

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Theseplans are defined benefit plans. The following is a summaiyoffunding policies,
contribution methods and benefit provisions.

Determination ofcontribution

requirements

Employer

Plan Members

Period required to vest

Post-Retirement benefit

increases

Eligibility for distribution

Provisions for:

Disability benefits
Death benefits

PPRF FPRF

Actuarially determined Actuarially determined

Contributes annually an amount which, together with contributions fi'om
the members and the allocable portion of the State premium tax fund,
will be sufficientto meet the normal cost of the fimd and amortizeany
actuarial deficiencyover a period of not more than fortyyears in
accordance with West Virginia State code §8-022-10. However,
municipalities may utilize an alternative contribution method which
allows the City to contributeno less than 107% ofthe prior year
contribution provided the actuary certifies in writing ttot the fund will be
solvent over the next 15 years under this method as authorized by West
Virginia State Code §8-22-20c(l). In no event can the employer
contribution be less than the normal cost as determinedby the actuaiy.
The City contributes 107% of the prior year's contributions for both
police and fire pension plans.

7% ofcovered payroll 7% ofcovered payroll

No vesting occurs. Ifseparation from enq)loymentoccurs the member is
entitled to a refund ofhis/her contributionsonly.

Cost of living adjustment after two years of retirement. Adjustment
calculated on the first $15,000 of the total annual benefit in the first year
and then the cumulativeindex for the preceding year. The
supplementary pension benefit shall not exceed four percent.

20 years ofcredited service or age 65; whichever comes first. Must be at
least 50.

PPRF

Yes

Yes

FPRF

Yes

Yes

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of thesenotes.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actuarial Assumptions and Rate ofReturn
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as ofJune 30,2015 for both

plans, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement. The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results ofan
actuarial experience study for the period July 1,2014, through Jime 30,2015. Additional
actuarial assumptions are disclosed in the Required Supplementary Information.

Policemen's Firemen's

Pension & Relief Pension & Relief

Fund Fimd

Actuarial assumptions:
Inflation rate 3.00% 3.00%
Salaryincreases 3.0 percenton average 2.0 percenton average
Investment rate ofreturn 5.00% 5.00%

Mortalityrates were based on the 1994 Group Annuity Mortalityfor Males or Females, as
appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based upon the status ofmembers.

Net Pension Liability, Reserves and Discount Rate
Currentyear net pension liability for the PPRF and FPRF are shown below. The annualrequired

contributions were made in accordance with State Code by both the PPRF or FPRF.

Reserves

Thereare no assets legallyreserved for purposes otherthan the payment ofplan members benefits
for either plan.

Net Pension Liability
The City's net pension liability for the Policemen's and Firemen's Pension and Relief funds are as

follows:

PPRF FPRF

Total pension liability $ 26,785,506 $ 37,228,522
Plan fiduciary net position 4.851.501 1.683.829

Net pension liability $ 21.934.005 $ 35.544.693

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability 18.11% 4.52%

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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CIIY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability Avas 5.00% for the PPFR and 5.00%
for the FPRF, and the municipal bond rate of3.80% for both plans. The projectionofcash flows
used to determine these discount rates assumed that the plans sponsor would make the statutory
required contribution in accordance with alternativefunding methodwhichis 107%ofthe prior
year's contribution as allowedby West Virginia State Code. Based on those assumptions, the
pensionplans' fiduciarynet position were projectedto be available to make all projectedfuture
benefitpayments ofcurrentplan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rateofreturnon
pensionplan investments were applied to all periods ofprojected benefitpayments to determine
the total pension liability.

The followingchart presents the sensitivityofthe net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate, calculated using the discount rates as used in the actuarial evaluation, and what the net
pension liabilitywould be if it were calculated using a discountrate that is 1-percentage point
lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Current

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

PPRF's net pension liability
FPRF's net pension liability

Pension Trust Funds Financial Statements

$ 26,027,454 $
$ 41,085,934 $

21,934,005
35,544,693

18,637,199
31,057,852

Policemen's

Pension and

ReliefFund

Firemen's

Pension and Total

ReliefFund (Memorandum Onlv)
Assets

Cash

Investments

Receivables:

Other

Interest

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Net Position

$ 52,896 $ 60,987 $ 113,883
4,794,236 1,618,991 6,413,227

3,099
1.271

3,099
752

4.851.502 1.683.829

-0- -0-

6,198
2.023

6.535.331

-0-

Held in trust for pension benefits $ 4.851.502 $ 1.683.829 $ 6.535.331

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part ofthesenotes.
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aTY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Policemen's Firemen's

Pension and Pension and Total

Relief Fxmd ReliefFund (Memorandum Or

Additions

Contributions:

Employer $ 669,371 $ 907,479 $ 1,576,850
Employee 130,842 164,249 295,091
Insurance premium tax allocation 326.196 416.791 742.987

Net contributions 1.126.409 1.488.519 2.614.928

Investment income:

Net appreciation in fair value of
investments ( 103,852) ( 67,200) ( 171,052)

Interest income and dividends 107,127 38,451 145,578
Capital gains (losses) 85.172 80.781 165.953

Net investment income 88.447 52.032 140.479

Miscellaneous -0- 41 41

Total additions 1.214.856 1.540.592 2.755.448

Deductions

General and administrative 1,198 1,189 2,387
Benefit payments 1.176.326 1.595.187 2.771.513

Total deductions 1.177.524 1.596.376 2.773.900

Net increase 37,332 ( 55,784) ( 18,452)

Net position - beginning ofyear 4.814.170 1.739.613 6.553.783

Net position - end ofyear $ 4.851.502 $ 1.683.829 $ 6.535.331

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

V.B. 1 Plan Descriptions Contribution Information and Funding Policies

Public Em|^yees Retirement system (PERS)
The City ofFairmont,West Virginiaparticipates in a state-wide, cost sharing, multiply-employer

definedbenefit plan on behalf ofgeneral City employees. The systemis administered by
agenciesofthe State ofWest Virginia and funded by contributions fi*om participants, employers,
and State appropriations, as necessary.

The following is a summaryof eligibilityfactors, contribution methods, and benefit provisions:

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERSl

Eligibility to participate

Authority establishing contribution
obligations and benefit provisions

Plan member's contribution rate

City's contribution rate

Period required to vest

Benefits and eligibility for
distribution

Deferred retirement portion

Provisions for:

Cost of living
Death benefits

All City full-time employees, except those covered
by other pension plans

State Statute

4.50%

14.00%

Five Years

A member who has attained age 60 and has eamed
5 years or more ofcontributing service or age 55
ifthe sum ofhis/her age plus years ofcredited
service is equal to or greater than 80. The final
average salary (three highest consecutive years in
the last 15) times the years of service times 2%
equals the annual retirement benefit.

No

No

Yes

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

V.B,2 Trend Information

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

Annual Pension Percentage

Fiscal Year Cost Contributed

2015 $ 647,204 100%
2014 $ 643,435 100%
2013 $ 579,756 100%

PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That information may be obtained by writing to the Public
Employees Retirement System, 4101 MacCorkle Ave S.E., Charleston, WV 25304.

The City ofFairmont, West Virginia elected to become a participating employer under the West
Virginia Employees Retirement System (PERS plan).

General Information About the Plan

The plan is a defined benefit plan and provides pensions for all participating employeesofthe
City. The PERS plan is a statewide, cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit retirement
plan for public employees established on July 1,1961. All employeesofthe State ofWest
Virginia and anypolitical subdivisionwhose governingbody elects to participateare required
(with certain exceptions) to become members. The PERS Plan is managed by a Board of
Trustees, which consists of the Govemor, State Auditor, State Treasurer, and Secretaryofthe
Department ofAdministration togetherwith the following gubernatorial appointments that are
subject to the advice and consent ofthe State Senate: for residents ofthe State who are not
participants in the retirement plans, one State and one non-state employeeparticipant in PERS,
and one participant each fi-om TRS, SPDDRS, SPRS, DSRS, EMSRS, MPFRS, and TDCRS.

Participants in the PERS Plan who retire at age 60 with at least five years of credited service or at
least age 55 with their age plus service equal to 80 or greater are entitled to a retirement benefit,
payablemonthlyfor life, equal to 2% of averagesalarymultipliedby yearsofservice. Average
salaryis the average ofthe three consecutive highest annualearningsout ofthe last fifteenyears
ofearnings. Terminatedmemberswith at least five yearsof contributory servicewhodo not
withdraw their accumulated contributions may elect to receivetheir benefitsat age 62. The
PERS Plan also provides death and disability benefits.

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Employees covered by benefit terms are all active employees.

Contributionrates for the PERS Plan are subject to Chapter 5, Article 10of the West Virginia
State Code. For the year ended Jime 30,2014, active members contributed4.5 percent of their
salaiy, and employers contributed 14.5 percent ofthe member's compensation into the plan. For
the year ended June 30,2015, activemembers contributed4.5 percent of their salary,and
employers contributed 14.0 percent ofthe member's compensation into the plan.

Pension Uabilities, Pension Expense, andDeferred Outflows ofResources and
DeferredInflows ofResources Related to Pensions

At June 30,2015 the City reported a liability of$1,218,249 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as ofJune 30,2014 and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuationas ofJuly 1,2013 and rolled forward to June 30,2014 using the actuarial assumption
and methods described in the appropriate section ofthe notes. The City'sportion ofthe net
pension liability was based on a projection ofthe City's long-term share ofcontributions to the
pensionplan relative to the projectedcontributions ofall participatingpublic employers
actuarially determined.

At June 30,2014, the City reported the following proportions and increases/decreases fi'om its
proportion measured as ofJune 30,2013:

Amount for proportionate share ofnet pension liability $ 1,218,249
Percentage for proportionate share ofnet pension liability 0.33001%
Increase (decrease) % fi'om prior proportion measured -0.02061%

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

For the year ended June 30,2015, the City recx)gnizedpension expense of$67,866 on its
government wide financial statements. At June 30,2015, the City reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions fi"om the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

ofResources ofResources

Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments $ -0- $ 1,566,293

Changes in proportion and differences between
government contributions and proportionate
share ofcontributions 102,739 -0-

Govemment contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 471.266

$ 574.005 $ 1.566.293

The amount reported as deferred outflows ofresources related to pensions resulting Ifrom
government contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,2016. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30.

2016 $( 219,006)
2017 ( 219,006)
2018 ( 219,006)
2019 ( 219,006)
2020 ( 219.0031

$ri.095.0271

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

ActuarialAssumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30,2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation: 2.2 percent
Salary increases: 4.25 - 6.0 percent, including inflation
Investment rate ofreturn: 7.5 percent, net ofpension plan investment expenses,

including inflation.

Mortality rates for non-disabled participants were based on the 1983 Group ArmuityMortality
Table for males and the 1971 Group ArmuityTable for females, as appropriate. Mortalityrates
for disabled participantswere based on the 1983 Group Armuity MortalityTable for Males and
Revenue Ruling 96-7 for Females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2013 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1,2013 to June 30,2014.

The long-termexpectedrate of return on pension plan investmentswas determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges ofexpected future real rates ofreturn
(expected returns, net ofpension plan investmentexpenseand inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combinedto producethe long-term expectedrate ofreturn
by weightingthe expected future real rates ofreturnby the target asset allocationpercentage and
by addingexpected inflation. Rates summarized in the following table include the inflation
component and were used for the following defined benefit plan:

Tareet Lone-Term Exnected

Asset Class Allocation Rate ofReturn

US Equity (Russell 3000) 27.50% 7.67%

International Equity (ACWI ex US) 27.50% 8.50%
Fixes Income 15.00% 2.90%

High Yield 0.00% 4.80%
TPS 0.00% 2.90%

Real Estate 10.00% 6.80%

Private Equity 10.00% 9.90%

Hedge Funds 10.00% 5.00%
CPA 0.00% 2.20%

Total 100.00%

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection ofcash
flows used to determine the discountrate assuming that employercontributions will continueto
followthe currentftinding policies. Based on those assumptions, the pensionplan's fiduciary net
position was projectedto be availableto make all projectedfuture benefitpayments ofactive
and inactiveemployees. Therefore, the long-term expectedrate ofretum on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods ofprojected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity ofthe City's Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension Liability to Changes in
the Discount Rate

The followingpresents the City'sproportionate shareofthe net pension liabilitycalculated using
the discoimt rate of7.50 percent as well as what the City'sproportionate share ofthe net pension
liabilitywould be if it were calculated using a discountrate that is 1 percentage point lower
(6.50 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate.

(6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%)

City's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $ 3,441,466 $ 1,218,249 $(676,894)

Pension Plan FiduciaryNet Position
Detailedinformationabout the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately

issued financial report available at the Consolidated Public Retirement Board's website at
www.wvrewtirement.com. That information can also be obtained by writing to the West
Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board, 4101 MacCorkle Avenue SE, Charleston, WV
25304.

VI. Retirement Health Plan (RHP)

VI. 1. Plan Description:
The City contributes to the West VirginiaRetireeHealthBenefitsTrust Fund (RHBT), a cost-

sharingmultiple-employer defined benefitpostemployment healthcare plan administered by the
West Virginia Public InsuranceAgency(PEIA). RHBT provides medical benefits to eligible
retiredemployees ofparticipating employers. RHBT issues a publiclyavailable financial report
that includes financial statements andrequired supplementary information. Thatreport maybe
obtainedby writing to: West VirginiaRetiree HealthBenefitsTrust, Building5, Room 10001,
1900 Kanawha Boulevard East, Charleston, West Virginia, 25305-0710.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Vl.2. Authority Establishing the Plan and Funding Policy
Chapter 5, Article 16D of the West Virginia code assigns the authority to establish and amend
benefits and provisions to the RHBT. Plan members are currentlyrequired to contribute$270
per month per active health policy. Participatingemployers are contractually required to
contribute at a rate assessed each year by RHBT. The RHBT board sets the employer
contribution rate based on the annual required contributions of the plan (ARC), and amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters ofGovernmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level offunding that, ifpaid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or fimding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years.

VI.3. Trend Information

West Virginia Retiree Health Benefits Trust Fund (RHBT)

Annual OPEB Percentage

Fiscal Year Cost Contributed

2015 $ 292,481 0%
2014 $ 129,094 0%
2013 $ 101,637 0%

VII. Subsequent Events

The City has considered all subsequent events through January 21,2016, the date the financial
statements were made available.

The accompanying independentauditor'sreport is an integral part ofthese notes.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE

NET PENSION LIABILITY

nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Fiscal Year

Ended

June 30.2015

City's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.33%

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 1,218,249

City's covered - employee payroll $ 4,622,885

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage ofits covered - employee payroll 26.36%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total pension liability 93.98%

The information presented in the schedule ofthe proportionate share of the net pension liability is the only year
available as ofJune 30,2015. The City will be adding additional years to the accompanyingschedule as
information is available.

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relationto the contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

City's covered - employee payroll

Contributions as a percentageofcovered- employeepayroll

Fiscal Year

Ended

June 30.2015

$ 647,204

647.204

$ -0-

$ 4,622,885

14.00%

The information presented in the schedule of City's contributions is the onlyyearavailable as ofJune 30,2015.
The City will be adding additional years to the accompanying schedules as information is available.

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Changes in Benefit Terms
There were no changes in benefit terms for the year ended June 30,2015.

Changes in Assumptions
There were no changes in assumptions for the year ended June 30,2015.

Theinformation presented in theschedule of proportionate share of thenetpension liability andthe schedule of
City's contributions is theonlyyear available asof June30,2015. The City will be adding additional years to
the accompanying schedules as information is available.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report and notes areintegral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND

RELATED RATIOS MULHYEAR

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Fiscal year ending June 30,

Total Pension Liability
Service cost

Interest on the total pension liability
Benefit changes
Difference between expected and actual experience
Assumption changes
Benefit payments
Refunds

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning

Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Pension plan net investment income
Benefit payments
Refunds

Pension plan administrative expense
Other

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total
pension liability

Covered employee payroll

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered
employee payroll

2015

812,884 $
1,625,068

-0-

( 1,337,486)
593,316

( 1,534,428)
( 60.759)

98,595

37.129.927

37.228.522

1,324,270
164,249

51,321
( 1,534,428)
( 60,759)
( 1,189)

752

( 55,784)

1.739.613

1.683.829

2014

767,965
1,693,559

-0-

-0-

1,099,407
( 1,557,909)
( 5.58n

1,997,441

35.132.486

37.129.927

1,209,650
162,770
258,994

( 1,557,909)
( 5,581)
( 1,752)

54.076

120,248

1.619.365

1.739.613

$ 35.544.693 $ 35.390.314

4.52%

1.841.996 $

4.69%

1.825.201

1,929.68% 1,938.98%

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY MULTIYEAR -

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS (WHICH MAY BE BUILT PROSPECITVELY)

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FY Ending June 30.

2014

2015

Total

Pension

Liability

Plan Net

Position

Net Pension

Liability

$ 37,129,927 $ 1,739,613 $ 35,390,314
$ 37,228,522 $ 1,683,829 $ 35,544,693

Plan Net Position

as a % ofTotal

Pension Liability

4.69%

4.52%

Coyered

Payroll

$ 1,825,201
$ 1,841,996

The accompanying independent auditor'sreport and notes are integralparts of this schedule.
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as a % of
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1,938.98%
1,929.68%



Fiscal Year Ended

06/30/2013

06/30/2014

06/30/2015

CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS MULTTYEAR

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actuariallv

Detennined Employer State

Contribution Contribution Contribution

£al

$ 1,875,854
$ 1,952,499
$ 1,974,513

(hi

$ 753,076
$ 805,791
$ 907,479

(01

$ 432,491
$ 403,859
$ 416,791

Percentage

Contributed

rfbHfc^l/(al

63%

62%

67%

Covered

Payroll

m

$ 1,781,502
$ 1,825,201
$ 1,841,996

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes are integral partsof thisschedule.
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Actual Contribution

as a % of

Covered Payroll

r(b)+(c)i/ff)

67%

66%

72%



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

HREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Theinformation requested in the required supplementary schedules was determined as partofthe actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

MeasurementDate June 30,2015, measurement date based on actuarial liabilities
as of July 1,2014

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal, Level-Percentage-of-Pay

Actuarial Value ofAssets Market value used for GASB Nos. 67 and 68 reporting

Contribution Policy and
Amortization Method

ActuarialAssumptions:

Investment Rate ofReturn

GASB 67/68 Discount Rate

ProjectedSalary Increases

Cost ofLiving Increases

The sponsor finances benefits using the Alternative
funding policy as defined in state statue. Sponsor contributions
are equal to 107 percent ofthe prior year contribution. The plan
also receives state contributions based on an allocation of

premium tax that depends on the number ofactive and retired
members. This fimding policy does not directly amortize the
unfunded actuarial liability. However, projected sponsor, state
and member contributions along with projected investment
earnings are not expected tofullyfund theprojected actuarial
liabilityfor currentplan members, and assetsfor the closed
plan areprojected to be depleted by 2024.

5.000% per year

4.468% per year at June 30,2015, and 4.590% at June 30,2014

9.000% with one year ofservice, 4.500% with two years of
service, 2.000% with three to four years of service and 1.000%
after

3.000% on first $15,000 ofAnnual Benefit and on the
accumulated supplemental pension amounts for prior years

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts ofthis schedule.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND

RELATED RATIOS MULTIYEAR

POLICEMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Fiscal year ending June 30,

Total Pension Liability
Service cost

Interest on the total pension liability
Benefit changes
Differencebetween expected and actual experience
Assumption changes
Benefit payments
Refunds

Net change in total pension liability

2015

606.861 $
1,289,059

-0-

( 303,310)
-0-

( 1,092,158)
( 84.168)

416,284

2014

606,293
1,281,433

-0-

-0-

-0-

( 1,047,535)
( 34.223)

805,968

Total pension liability-beginning 26.369.222 25.563.254

Total pension liability - ending (a) 26.785.506 26.369.222

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions 995,568 906,968
Employee contributions 130,842 130,476
Pension plan net investment income 87,174 592,817
Benefit payments ( 1,092,158) ( 1,047,535)
Refunds ( 84,168) ( 34,223)
Pension plan administrative expense ( 1,198) ( 1,305)
Other 1.271 51.320

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 37,331 598,518

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 4.814.170 4.215.651

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 4.851.501 4.814.169

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 21.934.005 $ 21.555.053

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total
pension liability 18.11% 18.26%

Covered employee payroll $ 1.674,166 $ 1.639.169

Net pension liability as a percentage ofcovered
employee payroll 1,310.15%

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY MULHYEAR

LAST 10 nSCAL YEARS (WHICH MAY BE BUILT PROSPECIIVELY)
POLICEMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

FY Ending June 30.

2014

2015

Total

Pension

Liability

Plan Net Position

Plan Net Net Pension as a % ofTotal

Position Liability Pension Liability

$ 26,369,222 $ 4,814,169 $ 21,555,053 18.26%
$ 26,785,506 $ 4,851,501 $ 21,934,005 18.11%

Coyered

Payroll

$ 1,639,169
$ 1,674,166

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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Net Pension Liability

as a % of

Coyered Payroll

1,315.00%
1,310.15%



Fiscal Year Ended

06/30/2013

06/30/2014

06/30/2015

CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS MULITYEAR

POLICEMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND
FOR THE nSCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actuariallv

Determined Employer State

Contribution Contribution Contribution

(bl fc)

$ 1,282,078
$ 1,383,346
$ 1,401,173

$ 545,104
$ 583,261
$ 669,372

$ 342,568
$ 323,707
$ 326,196

Percentage

Contributed

r(bH(cll/(al

69%

66%

71%

Covered

Payroll

m

$ 1,469,669
$ 1,639,169
$ 1,674,166

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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Actual Contribution

as a % of

Covered Payroll

rn>H(cn/(f)

60%

55%

59%



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

POLICEMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The information requested in therequired supplementary schedules was determined aspart of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

MeasurementDate June 30,2015, measurement date based on actuarial liabilities
as ofJuly 1,2014

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal, Level-Percentage-of-Pay

Actuarial Value ofAssets Market value used for GASB Nos. 67 and 68 reporting

Contribution Policy and
Amortization Method

ActuarialAssumptions:

Investment Rate ofReturn

GASB 67/68 DiscountRate

Projected Salary Increases

Cost ofLiving Increases

The sponsor finances benefits using the Alternative
funding policy as defined in state statue. Sponsor contributions
are equal to 107 percent ofthe prior year contribution. The plan
also receives state contributions based on an allocation of

premium tax that depends on the number ofactive and retired
members. This funding policy does not directly amortize the
unfunded actuarial liability. However, projected sponsor, state
and member contributions along with projected investment
earnings are expected to fully fund the projected actuarial
liability for current plan members by 2044.

5.000% per year

5.000% per year at June 30,2015, and 5.000% at June 30,2014

9.000% with one year ofservice, 4.500% with two years of
service, 2.000% with three to four years of service and 1.000%
after

3.000% on first $15,000 ofAnnual Benefit and on the
accumulated supplemental pension amounts for prior years

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING FUND BALANCE SHEETS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Economic

Boards and Workers Urban Development
Commissions Comnensation Renewal Grant

Fund Fund Authority Fund Total

ASSETS

Cash $ 6,531 $ 202,141 $ 3,157 $ 3,086 $ 214,915
Investments 5,522 1,658,431 -0- -0- 1,663,953
Receivables:

Grant -0- -0- -0- 109,017 109,017
Interest -0- 865 -0- -0- 865

Due from (to):
Other funds 1,690 -0- -0- ( 78.8901 ( 77.2001

TOTAL ASSETS $ 13,743 $ 1.861.437 $ 3,157 $ 33.213 $ 1.911.550

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ -0- $ 9,934 $ 2,200 $ 30,347 $ 42,481
Claims payable -0- 187.525 -0- -0- 187.525

Total liabilities -0- 197.459 2,200 30.347 230.006

Fund Balances

Restricted -0- -0- -0- 2,866 2,866
Assigned 13.743 1.663.978 957 -0- 1.678.678

Total fund balances 13,743 1.663.978 957 2.866 1.681.544

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 13,743 $ 1-861.437 $ 3.157 $ 33.213 $ 1.911.550

The accompanying independent auditor's reportand notes are an integral part ofthe combining financial
statements.

98



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

Economic
Boards and Workers Urban Development

Commissions Comnensation Renewal Grant

Fimd Fund Authoritv Fund Total

Revenues

Intergovemmental:
Federal $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 153,891 $ 153,891
State -0- -0- -0- 47,999 47,999

Contributions:

From employer -0- 165,895 -0- -0- 165,895
Donations 4,000 -0- 5,000 10,962 19,962
Investment income 187 57,666 1 -0- 57,854
Gain (loss) on investments ( 56) ( 12.0171 -0- -0- ( 12.0731

Total revenues 4,131 211.544 5,001 212.852 433.528

Expenditures
General government -0- 185,066 -0- -0- 185,066
Public safety -0- -0- -0- 49,955 49,955
Culture and recreation 928 -0- -0- 10,962 11,890
Community development 2,490 -0- 21,000 118,157 141,647
Benefit payments -0- 58.514 -0- -0- 58.514

Total expenditures 3,418 243.580 21,000 179.074 447.072

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over (under)
expenditures 713 ( 32.0361 fl5.9991 33.778 ( 13.5441

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in -0- -0- 16,000 -0- 16,000
Operating transfers (out) -0- -0- -0- ( 36.6001 ( 36.6001

Total other financing sources (uses) -0- -0- 16,000 ( 36.6001 ( 20.6001

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses 713 ( 32,036) 1 ( 2,822) ( 34,144)

Fund balance beginning ofyear 13,030 1.696.014 956 5,688 1.715.688

Fund balance end ofyear $ 13,743 $ 1.663.978 $ 957 % 2.866 $ 1.681.544

The accompanying independent auditor's reportand notes are an integral part of the combining financial
statements.
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Assets

Cash

Investments

Receivables:

Other

Interest

Total assets

CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
HDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Policemen's Firemen's

Pension and Pension and

Relief Relief

$ 52,896 $ 60,987
4,794,236 1,618,991

3,099
1.271

4.851.502

-0-

3,099
752

1.683.829

-0-

Total

$ 113,883
6,413,227

6,198
2.023

6.535.331

-0-

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Net Position

Held in trust for pension benefits $ 4.851.502 $ 1.683.829 $ 6.535.331

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this statement.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Policemen's

Pension and

Relief

669,371
130,842
326.196

1.126.409

( 103,852)
107,127

85.172

88.447

zOz
1.214.856

1,198
1.176.326

1.177.524

37,332

4.814.170

Firemen's

Pension and

Relief

907,479
164,249
416.791

1.488.519

( 67,200)
38,451
80.781

52.032

41
1.540.592

1,189
1.595.187

1.596.376

( 55,784)

1.739.613

Total

$ 1,576,850
295,091
742.987

2.614.928

( 171,052)
145,578
165.953

140.479

41
2.755.448

2,387
2.771.513

2.773.900

( 18,452)

6.553.783

Additions:

Contributions:

Employer
Employees
Insurance premium tax allocation

Net contributions

Investment income:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Interest income and dividends

Capital gains (losses)
Net investment income

Miscellaneous

Total additions

Deducdons:

General and administrative

Benefit payments
Total deductions

Net increase

Net position - beginning ofyear

Net position - end ofyear $ 4.851.502 $ 1.683.829 $ 6.535.331

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integralparts of this statement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Council of
the City ofFairmont

Fairmont, West Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States ofAmerica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, aggregate blended component units, each major fimd, and the
aggregate remaining fimd information ofCity ofFairmont, West Virginia, as ofand for the year
ended June 30,2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise City ofFairmont, West Virginia's basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon date January 21,2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit ofthe financial statements, we considered the City of
Fairmont, West Virginia's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose ofexpressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the
effectiveness ofthe City of Fairmont, West Virginia's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on fiie effectiveness ofCity ofFairmont, West Virginia's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation ofa control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination ofdeficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Honorable Mayor and Council of
theCity ofFairmont Page 2

Ourconsideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of thissection and was notdesigned to identify alldeficiencies in internal control that mi^t be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given theselimitations, during our auditwe did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part ofobtaining reasonableassurance about whether the City ofFairmont, West Virginia's
financial statements are fi*ee of material misstatement, we performed testsofits compliance with
certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination offinancial statement

amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective ofour audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results ofour
tests disclosed no instances ofnoncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose ofthis report is solely to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

January 21,2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OAm CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Mayor and Council of
the City ofFairmont

Fairmont, West Virginia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City ofFairmont, West Virginia's compliance with the types ofcompliance
requirements described in the OMB CircularA-1S3 ComplianceSupplementthat could have a
direct and material effect on each ofCity ofFairmont, West Virginia's major federal programs
for the year ended June 30,2015. The City ofFairmont,West Virginia'smajor federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each ofCity ofFairmont, West
Virginia's major federal programs based on our audit of the types ofcompliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Proflt
Organizations, Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types ofcompliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of
Fairmont, West Virginia's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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Honorable Mayor and Council of
the City ofFairmont Page 2

Webelieve thatouraudit provides a reasonable basis forouropinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, ouraudit does notprovide a legal determination of Cityof
Fairmont, West Virginia's compliance.

Opinion on Each MajorFederalProgram

In our opinion. Cityof Fairmont, WestVirginia, complied, in all material respects, with the types
ofcompliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management ofCity ofFairmont, West Virginia, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective intemal control over compliancewith the types ofcompliancerequirementsreferred to
above. In planning and performing our audit ofcompliance, we considered City ofFairmont,
West Virginia's intemal control over compliance widi the types ofrequirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on compliance
for each major federal program and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in
accordance with 0MB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness ofCity ofFairmont, West Virginia's intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation ofa control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination ofdeficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement ofa federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination ofdeficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requir^ent ofa federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration ofintemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph ofthis section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Honorable Mayor and Council of
the City ofFairmont Page 3

The purpose ofthis report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results ofthat testing based on the
requirements of0MB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report isnot suitable for any other
purpose.

January 21,2016
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2015

A. Sununary ofAudit Results

Financial Statements

Type ofauditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Deficiency(s) identified not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FederalAwards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Deficiency(s) identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type ofauditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with section .510(a) ofCircular A-133?

Identification ofmajor programs:

United States Environmental Protection Agency/ Office ofWater
ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving
Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee

107

Unmodified Opinion

No

None reported

No

No

None reported

Unmodified Opinion

No

CFDA #66.468

$300.000

yes X no



CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTD)

FOR THE nSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit

No Findings

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit

United States Environmental Protection Agency —0£Sce ofWater—ARRA —
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds —CFDA Number
66.468 —YearEndedJune 30,2015.

No Findings

108



a
X

Y
O

F
F

A
IR

M
O

N
T

,W
E

S
T

V
IR

G
IN

IA
S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
O

F
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

A
N

D
F

E
D

E
R

A
L

A
W

A
R

D
S

F
O

R
T

H
E

FI
SC

A
L

Y
E

A
R

E
N

D
E

D
JU

N
E

30
,

20
15

F
e
d

e
ra

l
G

ra
n

to
r/

P
a
ss

-T
h

ro
u

g
h

G
ra

n
to

r

P
ro

g
ra

m
T

it
le

U
ni

te
d

St
at

es
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

lP
to

te
ct

io
n

A
ge

nc
y/

O
fl

fi
ce

of
So

lid
W

as
te

an
d

E
m

er
ge

nc
y

R
es

po
ns

e

W
es

tV
ir

gi
ni

a
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

A
R

EA
—

B
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

s
A

ss
es

sm
en

ta
nd

C
le

an
up

C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e

A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

U
ni

te
d

St
at

es
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

lP
ro

te
ct

io
n

A
ge

nc
y/

O
ff

ic
e

of
W

at
er

St
at

e
of

W
es

tV
irg

in
ia

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
lP

ro
te

ct
io

n
an

d
W

es
tV

irg
in

ia
W

at
er

D
ev

el
op

m
en

tA
ut

ho
ri

ty

A
A

R
A

-
C

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n

G
ra

nt
sf

or
D

rin
ki

ng
W

at
er

St
at

eR
ev

ol
vi

ng
Fi

m
d

T
ot

al
U

ni
te

d
St

at
es

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

lP
ro

te
ct

io
n

A
ge

nc
y

U
ni

te
d

St
at

es
D

ep
ar

tm
en

to
fA

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
R

ur
al

H
ou

si
ng

Se
rv

ic
e

C
om

m
un

it
y

F
ac

il
it

ie
s

L
oa

ns
an

d
G

ra
nt

s

T
ot

al
U

ni
te

d
St

at
es

D
ep

ar
tm

en
to

fA
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

U
ni

te
d

St
at

es
D

ep
ar

tm
en

to
fH

ou
si

ng
an

d
U

rb
an

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t/O
ff

ic
e

of
C

om
m

un
ity

P
la

nn
in

g
an

d
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

St
at

e
o

fW
es

t
V

irg
in

ia
O

ff
ic

e
o

fE
co

no
m

ic
O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty

E
m

er
ge

nc
y

Sh
el

te
rG

ra
nt

s
Pr

og
ra

m

To
ta

lU
ni

te
d

St
at

es
D

ep
ar

tm
en

to
fH

ou
sin

g
an

d
U

rb
an

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

1
0

9

Fe
de

ra
l

Pr
og

ra
m

R
ec

ei
pt

s
Fe

de
ra

l
1

<
^

A
or

A
w

ar
d

or
R

ev
en

ue
s

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
/

N
um

be
r

G
ra

nt
N

um
be

r
A

m
ou

nt
R

ec
og

ni
ze

d
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

66
.8

18
B

F-
97

33
34

01
-1

$
3,

00
0

$
3,

00
0

$
3,

00
0

6
6

.4
6

8

1
0

.7
6

6

1
4

.2
3

1
E

-1
4

-D
C

-5
4

-0
0

0
1

3
,7

8
0

,0
0

0
5

2
9

.3
4

6

5
3

2
.3

4
6

1
3

,0
5

0

51
,2

85

1
3

.0
5

0

1
3

.0
5

0

5
1

.2
8

5

5
1

.2
8

5

5
2

9
.3

4
6

5
3

2
.3

4
6

1
3

.0
5

0

1
3

.0
5

0

5
1

.2
8

5

5
1

.2
8

5



aXY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND FEDERALAWARDS (CONTD)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor

Program Title

United States Department of the Interior/National Park Service

StateofWest Virginia HistoricPreservation Office ofthe Division of
Culture and History

ARRA - Save America's Treasures

Total United States Department of the Interior

United States Department of Homeland Security

StateofWest Virginia DepartmentofMilitaryAffairs &Public Safety
HomelandSecurityStateAdministrative Agency

Marion County Commission

Homeland Security Grant Program

Total United States Departmentof HomelandSecurity

Total federal funding

Federal

CFDA

Number

15.929

97.067

Grant Number

13-LE-52

Program Receipts Federal
or Award or Revenues Disbursements/
Amount Recognized Expenditures

$ 53,653 $ 53.653

53.653

32,903 32.903

32.903

$ 683.237

$ 53.653

53.653

32.903

32.903

$ 683.237

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying schedule offederal awards is asummary ofthe activity ofthe City ofFairmont, West Virginia's federal award programs and presents transactions that would be
included in financial statements offlie City presented on the accrual basis ofaccounting as contemplated by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2015

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Financial Audit

No prior audit findings.

Major Federal Award Programs Audit

United States EnvironmentalProtection Agency^ 0£Sce ofWater—ARRA —
Capitalization Grants for Drinking WaterState Revolving Funds —CFDA
Number 66,468- YearEndedJune 30,2014,

No prior audit findings.
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CITY OF FAIRMONT, WEST VIRGINIA
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

United States Environmental Protection Agency —OfGceofWater—ARRA —Capitalization
Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds —CFDA Number 66,468—YearEnded
June 30,2015,

There were no audit findings therefore a correctiveactionplan is not required.
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